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The 3% increase in Subscription revenues was due to $36 million of favorable effects of foreign exchange
rates and a $49 million reduction in subscription agents' commissions, which are neited against revenue,
partially offset by lower subscription revenue per subscriber.

The 2% increase in Advertising revenues reflects easier comparisons to 2002 during the early part of the
year, resulting from the aftermath of the events of September 11, 2001, offset in part by a soft print advertising
market in the latter part of 2003.

The increase in Other revenues resulted from increases at Southern Living At Home, a division that sells
merchandise via in-home parties, and Synapse, a direct subscription marketing company. These gains were
partially offset by a $52 million decrease at Time Life.

The decrease in Operating Income before Depreciation and Amortization includes the previously
discussed $99 million impairment charge related to the goodwill and intangible assels of the Time Wamer
Book Group. It also includes an $84 million decline at Time Life (a $72 million Joss in 2003 versus income of
$12 million in 2002) and an increase in pension-related expenses of $44 million. These items were partially
oflset by an overall increase in revenue. Restructuring charges of $21 million were also recorded in 2003,
including $9 million for Time Life workforce reductions. As previously discussed, in December 2003, the
Company sold Time Life and recorded a loss on disposal of $29 million. Operating expenses for the magazine
publishing business include manufacturing (paper, printing and distribution) and editorial-related costs, which
together increased 2% to $1.627 billion due primarily to the eflects of foreign exchange rates,

The decrease in Operating Income was due primarily to lower Operating Income before Depreciation and
Amortization, as discussed above, and higher depreciation expense, primarily related to increased capitalized
soltware and building improvements. Time Life contributed $82 million of Operating Losses in 2003 and
Opcrating Income of $6 million in 2002.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY
Current Financial Condition

At December 31, 2004, Time Warner had $22.375 billion of debt, $6.139 billion of cash and equivalents
(net debt of $16.236 billion, defined as total debt less cash and equivalents) and $60.771 billion of
shareholders’ equity, compared to $25.745 billion of debt, $3.040 billion of cash and equivalents (net debt of
$22.705 billion) and $56.213 billion of shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2003.

As discussed in more detail below, management believes that Time Warner’s cash provided by
operations, cash and equivalents, borrowing capacity under its committed credit facilities and availability
under its commercial paper programs are sufficient to fund its capital and liquidity needs for the foreseeable
future.

Debt Reduction Program
in January 2003, the Company announced its intention to reduce its overall level of indebtedness.

Specifically, the Company indicated its intention was to reduce consolidated net debt to approximately
$20 billion by the end of 2004.
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The following table shows the change in net debt from December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004
(millions):

Net debt at December 31, 2003 ...ttt e e e $22,705
Free Cash Flow ™ . . . (3,280)
Acquisition of Advertising.Ccom . ......... ittt e 445
Acquisition of additional interest in Synapse Group Inc. ......................... 120
Net proceeds from sale of WMG® ... . ... ... .. .. . .. (2,501)
Proceeds from sale of a portion of the Company's investment in Google ............ (195)
Proceeds from sale of the Company’s investment in Gateway ..................... (280)
Proceeds from sale of the Company’s investment in VIVA and VIVA Plus.......... (134)
O eT L e e et (644)
Net debt at December 31, 2004(C) .. ..ottt e i $16,236

) See Free Cash Flow discussion under “Cash Flows™ below for a reconciliation of the Company's Free Cash Flow to cash provided by operations
($6.618 billion in 2004).

™ Represents $2.6 billion of proceeds received from the sale of WMG less certain working capital adjustments.

© Included in the nel debt balance is approximately $299 million, which represents the net unamortized fair value adjustment recognized as a result of the
merger of America Online and Historic TW.

With the receipt of the proceeds upon the closing of the sale of the Company’s recorded music and music
publishing businesses in the first quarter of 2004, as well as the generation of significant Free Cash Flow, the
Company achieved its previously announced net debt reduction target in the first quarter, almost a full year
ahead of schedule.

The Company employs a disciplined approach 1o capital management, including investment opportunities
and the potential return of capital to sharcholders. Depending upon the timing and magnitude of such
transactions, the Company’s net debt may continue to decline due to the prospective generation of Free Cash
Flow.

The Company has submitted a joint bid with Comcast for the acquisition of Adelphia. If successful, the
Company’s net debt would increase.

Cash Flows

Cash and equivalents increased to $6.139 billion as of December 31, 2004, from $3.040 billion as of
December 31, 2003. Components of this change are discussed in more detail in the pages that follow.
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Operating Activities

Sources of cash provided by operations are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2603 2002
(restated) (restated)
(millions)
Operating Income (Loss) before Depreciation and
AMOTUZAtION . .. oottt e $ 9,372 $8,393  $(34,651)
Noncash asset impairments. .. ..............cociivinrennn.. 10 318 42,511
Noncash legal reserves related to government investigations . .. 300 — —
Net interest payments™® ... ... ... ... .. ... . . (1,578)  (1,633) (1,548)
Net income taxes paid“” ................................. (382) (489) (246)
Adjustments relating to discontinued operations*). . .......... 123 350 639
Merger and restructuring payments'® ... . ... ... ... (90) (293) (512)
Domestic pension plan contributions ....................... (358) (648) (119)
Microsoft Settlement.......... ... i, — 750 —
" Cash paid for litigation settlements ..............covveuu.ns — (391) —_—
All other, net, inciuding working capital changes............. (779) 244 683
Cash provided by operations . . .............. ... ..ol $6618 §$6601 § 6757

(EH

Includes interest income received of $94 million, $61 million and $93 miliion in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
(h)

Includes income tax rcfunds received of $107 million, $15 million and $49 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002. respectively.

Includes net income (loss) from discontinued operations of $121 million. ($495) million and ($1.012) billion in 2004, 2003 and 2002. respectively.
Amounts also include working capilal related adjustments associated with discontinued operations of $2 million. $845 million and $1.651 billion in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Includes payments for merger and restructuring costs. as well as payment for certain other merger-refated liabilities.

Cash provided by operations increased (o $6.618 billion in 2004 compared 1o $6.601 billion in 2003. The
increase in cash provided by operations is related primarily 10 an increase in Operating Income before
Depreciation and Amortization and lower domestic qualified pension plan contributions, tax, interest and
merger and restructuring payments. These increases were partially offset by a reduction in cash provided by
working capital, a reduction in cash relating 1o discontinued operations and the absence of net cash received
from litigation settiements in 2004. The changes in working capital are subject to wide fluctuations based on
the timing of cash transactions related to production schedules, the acquisition of programming, collection of
accounts receivables and sales proceeds and similar items. The change in working capital between periods
included higher production and programming spending and the timing of accounts payable and accrual
payments.

()

Cash provided by operations decreased to $6.601 billion for 2003, compared to $6.757 billion in 2002. The
decline in cash provided by operations is related primarily to higher net interest and tax payments, lower cash
generated from discontinued operations, higher domestic pension contributions and decreased contributions
from working capital primarily related to higher production spending at Warner Bros. These factors causing
declines were offset in part by an increase in Operating Income before Depreciation and Amortization
(excluding noncash impairment charges of intangible assets), a decrease in cash paid for restructuring and
merger liabilities and $359 million of net cash received in connection with litigation settlements.
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Investing Activities

Sources of cash provided (used) by investing activities are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(restated)
(millions)

Investment and acquisitions, net of cash acquired:

Synapse'® ... $ (1200 $ (40) $ —

Advertising.com. ....... .. ... (445) — —

The WB Network .. ... — (128) —_

Consolidation of AOLA®™ ......................... ..., 33 — —

AOL Europe . ... i i e — — (6,475)

All other, principally funding of joint ventures ............. (345) (402) (919)
Investments and acquisitions, net from discontinued operations — (52) (162)
Capital expenditures and product development costs from

continuing Operations ..............oiiiiiiiiiiiii e (3,024)  (2,761) (2,843)
Capital expenditures and product development costs from

discontinued operations ................ciiiiiiannin.n. — (126) (386)
Proceeds from sale of the Company’s investment in Hughes . .. — 783 —
Proceeds from the sale of a portion of the Company's

investmentin Google .......... ... ... ... .l 195 — —
Proceeds from the sale of the Company’s investment in

Gl « ottt e e 280 — —
Proceeds from the sale of other available-for-sale securities . . .. 57 296 187
Net proceeds from the sale of WMG® .. ... ... ............. 2,501 — —
Proceeds from the sale of the Company’s investment in VIVA

and VIVAPlus .. ... i 134 — —
Proceeds from sale of the Company's investment in Comedy

Central ... e — 1,225 —
Proceeds from sale of Warner Manufacturing................ — 1,050 —
All other investment proceeds . ..........ccoviirieninennen.., 231 232 3ol

Cash provided (used) by investing activities ............... $ (503) § 77 $(10,237D)

' Represents purchase of additional interest in Synapse Group Inc.
®' Represents cash balance of AOLA upon consolidation.

' Represents $2.6 billion of proceeds received from the sale of WMG less certain working capital adjustments.

Cash used by investing activities was $503 million in 2004 compared to cash provided by investing
activities of $77 million in 2003. The decrease in cash provided (used) by investing activities is due to lower
proceeds from sale of investments, an increase in capital expenditures and product development costs and an
increase in investments and acquisitions during 2004. Capital expenditures increased across all business
segments and included capital expenditures related to the Company’'s new corporate headquarters and the

construction of a building by [PC Media.

Cash provided by investing activities was $77 million in 2003, compared to cash used by investing
activities of $10.237 billion in 2002. The increase in cash provided by investing activities is due primarily to the
lower level of cash used for investments and acquisitions than in 2002, when the Company spent $6.475 billion
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in connection with the acquisition of Bertelsmann’s interest in AOL Europe. In addition, as noted above, 2003
had higher investment proceeds from the sale of non-strategic assets. Capital expenditures and product
development costs from continuing operations were essenlially flat.

As previously discussed under “Other Recent Developments,” Comcast has been granted an option,
which generally can be exercised until 60 days following delivery of a termination notice from either TWC Inc.
or Comcast, to require TWC Inc. to redeem a portion of the TWC Inc, stock held by Comcast in exchange for
certain cable systems and approximately $750 million in cash.

Financing Activities

Sources of cash provided (used) by financing aclivities are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(millions)

Bormowings . . ..o $ 1,631 $ 2492 § 23,535
Debt repayments . . ... i e e (4,834) (7,230) (18,984)
Redemption of mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of a

subsidiary . .. ..o . — (813) (255)
Current period repurchases of common stock ................ — — (102)
Partnership distributions .. .. .. ... ... .. .. .. ... ... ... — —_ (1)
Principal payments on capital leases........................ (191) (178) (61)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options..................... 353 372 297
Other financing activities . ..............ccooiiiiin... 25 (11) 20

Cash provided (used) by financing activities............... $(3,016) $(5,368) $ 4,439

Cash used by financing activities was $3.016 billion in 2004 compared to $5.368 billion in 2003. The
decrease in cash used by financing activities was due principally to lower incremental debt repayments in 2004
and the absence of the 2003 redemption of mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of a subsidiary.

Cash used by financing activities was $5.368 billion in 2003 compared to cash provided by financing
activities of $4.439 billion in 2002. The increase in cash used by financing activities was due principally to
incremental debt repayments in 2003. These were pursuant to the Company’s debt reduction plan. This is in
contrast to incremental borrowings in 2002 that were used to finance the acquisition of Bertelsmann’s interest
in AOL Europe.

Free Cash Flow

Free Cash Flow is cash provided (used) by operations (as defined by U.S. generally accepled accounting
principles) less cash provided by discontinued operations, capital expenditures and product development costs,
principal payments on capital leases, and partnership distributions, if any. Free Cash Flow is considered to be
an important indicator of the Company’s liquidity, including its ability to reduce net debt, make strategic
investments, pay dividends to common shareholders and repurchase stock. Free Cash Flow should be
considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, the Company’s various cash flow measures (e.g., Cash
Provided by Operations) reported in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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The following table provides a reconciliation from the Company’s cash provided by operations to Free
Cash Flow,

Year knded December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(restated)
(millions)

Cash provided by operations...............cooviieienenn.... $ 6,618 $ 6,601 $ 6,757
Capital expenditures and product development costs......... (3,024) (2,887) (3,229)
Partnership distributions ........... ... .. . . o it — — (1)
Principal payments on capital leases ...................... (191) (178) (61)

Free Cash Flow including discontinued operations ............ 3,403 3,536 3,456
Less: Free Cash Flow from discontinued operations ......... (123) (224) (242)

Free Cash Flow ... ... . i e $ 3280 §$ 3312 §$ 3214

Capital Expenditures and Product Development Costs

Time Warner's total capital expenditures and product development costs were $3.024 billion in 2004
compared to $2.887 billion in 2003 and $3.229 billion in 2002. Capital expenditures and product development
costs from continuing operations were $2.761 billion in 2003 and $2.843 billion in 2002. Capital expenditures
and product development costs from continuing operations principally relate to the Company’s Cable segment,

which had capital expenditures from continuing operations of $1.712 billion in 2004, $1.637 billion in 2003 and
$1.813 billion in 2002.

The Cable segment’s capital expenditures from continuing operations comprise the following categories:

Ycar Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(millions)

Cable Segment Capital Expenditures

Cuslomer premise equipment ...............ciineneeenn.nn. $ 719 § 715 § 8I3
Scaleable infrastructure .......... .. .. ... i, 205 173 188
Line eX1ensions . . .. ... et 239 214 192
Upgrade/rebuild . ... ... .. o 139 175 224
Support capital . ... .. . 410 360 396

Total capital expenditures ..........ccoiirinninininen... $1,712  $1,637  §$1,813

Time Warner's Cable segment generally capitalizes expenditures for tangible fixed assets having a useful
life greater than one year. Capitalized costs typically include direct material, direct labor, overhead and
interest. Sales and marketing costs, as well as the costs of repairing or maintaining existing fixed assets, are
expensed as incurred. Types of capitalized expenditures at the Cable segment include plant upgrades, drops
(i.e., initial customer installations), converters (i.e., analog and digital boxes that convert transmitted signals
to analog and/or digital TV signal) and cable modems used in the delivery of high-speed data and Digital
Phone services. With respect to customer premise equipment, including converters and cable modems, the
Cable segment capitalizes direct installation charges only upon the initial deployment of such assets. All costs
incurred in subsequent disconnects and reconnects are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on these assets is
generally provided using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life. For converters and modems,
such life is 3-5 years and for plant upgrades, such useful life is 3-16 years.
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Outstanding Debt and Other Financing Arrangements
Outstanding Debt and Available Committed Financial Capacity

At December 31, 2004, Time Warner had total committed capacity, defined as maximum available
borrowings under various existing debt arrangements and cash and short term investments, of $37.991 billion.
Of this committed capacity, $15.265 billion was available to fund future obligations and $22.375 billion was
outstanding as debt (refer to Note 10 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for more details
on outstanding debt). At December 31, 2004, total committed capacity, unused capacity and outstanding debt
were as follows:

Unused
Committed Letters of  Committed Outstanding
Capacity Credit" Capacity Debt!
(millions)
Cash and equivalents........................ $ 6,139 $ — $ 6,139 $ -
Bank credit agreement and commercial paper
19 (474 %21 1 1 < SO 11,000 351 9,126 1,523
Fixed-rate public debt'™ .. ................... 20,393 — — 20,393
Other fixed-rate obligations .................. 459 — — 459
Total ... .. $37,991 $351 $15,265 $22,375

"' Represents the portion of committed capacily reserved for outstanding and undrawn letlers of credit.
™ Includes debt due within one year of $1.672 billion, which primarily relates to $1.5 billion of bonds that mature in 2005,
) Represents principal amounts adjusted for fair value adjustments, premiums and discounts.

Time Warner Credit Agreement

Time Warner has a $7.0 billion senior unsecured five-year revolving credit facility with a maturity date of
June 30, 2009 (the “TW Facility”). The permitted borrowers under the TW Facility are Time Warner and
Time Warner Finance Ireland (the “Borrowers™). The obligations of both Time Warner and Time Warner
Finance Ireland are directly or indirectly guaranteed by America Online, Historic TW, Turner and Time
Warner Companies, Inc. The obligations of Time Warner Finance Ireland are also guaranteed by Time
Warner.

Borrowings under the TW Facility bear interest at a rate determined by the credit rating of Time Warner,
which rate is currently LIBOR plus 0.39%. 1n addition, the Borrowers are required to pay a facility fee on the
aggregate commitments under the TW Facility at a rate determined by the credit rating of Time Warner,
which rate is currently 0.11% per annum. The Borrowers also incur an additional usage fee of 0.10% per
annum on the outstanding loans and other extensions of credit under the TW Facility if and when such
amounts exceed 50% of the aggregate commitments thereunder.

The TW Facility provides same-day funding and multi-currency capability, and a portion of the
commitment, not to exceed $500 miltion at any time, may be used for the issuance of letters of credit. The TW
Facility contains 2 maximum leverage ratio covenant of 4.5 times consolidated EBITDA of Time Warner and
an interest coverage covenant of 2.0 times consolidated cash interest expense of Time Warner. Each of these
terms, ratios and related financial metrics is defined in the agreement. At December 31, 2004, the Company
was in compliance with all of these covenants, with a leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio, as calculated in
accordance with the agreement, of approximately 1.8 times and 5.5 times, respectively. The TW Facility does
notl contain any credit ratings-based defaults or covenants, or any ongoing covenanti or representations
specifically relating to a material adverse change in Time Warner's financial condition or results of operations.
Borrowings may be used for general corporate purposes, and unused credit is available to support borrowings

105



TIME WARNER INC.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION — (Continued)

under commercial paper programs. As ol December 31, 2004, there were no loans outstanding and
$351 million in outstanding face amount of letters of credit were issued under the TW Facility.

TWC Inc. and TWE Credit Agreement

TWC Inc. and TWE have a $4.0 billion senior unsecured five-year revolving credit facility with a
maturity date of November 23, 2009 (the “Cable Facility”). TWC Inc. and TWE have cross-guaranteed their
respective obligations under the Cable Facility, and Warner Communications Inc. and American Television
and Communications Corporation (both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Time Warner but not
subsidiaries of TWC Inc.) have each guaranteed a pro-rata portion of TWE’s obligations under the Cable
Facility (including TWE’s obligations under its guarantee of TWC Inc.’s obligations). There are generally no
restrictions on the ability of Warner Communications Inc. and American Television and Communications
Corporation to transfer material assets (other than their interests in TWC Inc. or TWE) to parties that are not
guarantors.

Borrowings under the Cable Facility bear interest at a rate based on the credit rating of TWC Inc., which
rate is currently LIBOR plus 0.39%. In addition, the borrowers are required to pay a facility fee on the
aggregate commiiments under the Cable Facility at a rate determined by the credit rating of TWC Inc., which
rate is currently 0.11% per annum. The borrowers also incur an additional usage fee of 0.10% per annum on
the outstanding loans and other extensions of credit under the Cable Facility if and when such amounts exceed
50% of the aggregate commitments thereunder.

The Cable Facility provides same-day funding capability and a portion of the commitment, not to exceed
$300 million at any time, may be used for the issuance of letters of credit. The Cable Facility contains a
maximum leverage ratio covenant of 5.0 times consolidated EBITDA of TWC Inc. and an interest coverage
covenant of 2.0 times consolidated cash interest expense of TWC Inc. Each of these terms, ratios and related
financial metrics is defined in the agreement. At December 31, 2004, TWC Inc. was in compliance with all of
these covenants with a leverage ratio and inferest coverage ratio, as calculated in accordance with the
agreement, of approximately 1.4 times and 6.7 times, respectively. The Cable Facility does not contain any
credit ratings-based defaults or covenants, or any ongoing covenant or represeniations specifically relating 1o a
material adverse change in the financial condition or results of operations of Time Warner, TWC Inc. or
TWE. Borrowings may be used for general corporate purposes and unused credit is available to support
borrowings under commercial paper programs. As of December 31, 2004, there were no loans or letters of
credit outstanding, and approximately $1.523 billion of commercial paper was supported by the Cable Facility.

Commercial Paper Programs

Time Warner maintains a $5.0 billion unsecured commercial paper program. Included as part of the
$5.0 billion commercial paper program is a $2.0 billion European commercial paper program under which
Time Warner and Time Warner Finance Ireland can issue European commercial paper. The obligations of
both Time Warner and Time Warner Finance Ireland are directly and indirectly guaranteed by America
Online, Historic TW, Turner and Time Warner Companies, Inc. The obligations of Time Warner Finance
Ireland are also guaranteed by Time Warner. Proceeds from the commercial paper program may be used for
general corporate purposes, including investments, repayment of debt and acquisitions. Commercial paper
borrowings at Time Warner and Time Warner Finance Ireland are supported by the unused committed
capacity of the $7.0 billion TW Facility. As of December 31, 2004, there was no commercial paper
outstanding under the Time Warner commercial paper programs.

In the second quarter of 2004, TWC Inc. established a $2.0 billion unsecured conimercial paper program.
TWE continues to maintain its own $1.5 billion unsecured commercial paper program, although the combined
total of the unsecured notes outstanding at any time under these commercial paper programs (the “Notes”™)
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may not exceed $3.0 billion. Commercial paper borrowings at TWC Inc. and TWE are supported by the
unused committed capacity of the $4.0 billion Cable Facility. TWC Inc. is a guarantor of Notes issued by
TWE, and TWE is a guarantor of Notes issued by TWC Inc. In addition, Warner Communications Inc. and
American Television and Communications Corporation (each indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, but not subsidiariecs of TWC Inc. or TWE) have each guaranteed a pro-rata portion of the
obligations under the Notes, although there are generally no restrictions on the ability of Warner Communica-
tions Inc. and American Television and Communications Corporation to transfer material assets (other than
their interests in TWC Inc. or TWE) to parties that are not guarantors. The Notes rank pari passu with TWC
Inc.’s and TWE’s other unsecured senior indebtedness. As of December 31, 2004, there were approximately
$1.523 billion of Notes outstanding under the TWC Inc. and TWE commercial paper programs.

Other Financing Arrangements

From time to time, the Company enters into various other financing arrangements that provide for the
accelerated receipt of cash on certain accounts receivable and film backlog licensing contracts. The Company
employs these arrangements because they provide a cost-efficient form of financing, as well as an added level
of diversification of funding sources. The Company is able 1o realize cost efficiencies under these arrangements
since the assets securing the financing are held by a legally separate, bankruptcy-remote entity and provide
direct security for the funding being provided. These arrangements do not contain any rating-based defaults or
covenants. For more details, see Note 10 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The following table summarizes the Company’s other financing arrangements at December 31, 2004:

Committed Unused Outstanding
Capacity™ Capacity Utilization

(millions)
Accounts receivable securitization facilities. . .............. $ 805 $ 97 $ 708
Backlog securitization facility'™ .. ... ... ... . ... ... ... 500 52 448
Total other financing arrangements .................... $1,305 $149 $1,156

9 Ability to use accounts receivable securitization facilities and backlog securitization facility depends on availability of qualified assets.

™ The outstanding utilization on the backlog securitization facility is classified us deferred revenue on the accompanying consolidated balance sheel.

Film Sale-Leaseback Arrangements

From time to time the Company has entered into arrangements where certain film assets arc sold to
third-party investors that generate tax benefits to the investors that are not otherwise available to the
Company. The forms of these transactions differ, but it is generally that of a sale-leaseback arrangement with
a third-party special purpose entity (“SPE"). Such SPEs are capitalized with approximately $3.7 billion of
debt and equily from the third-party investors. The Company does not guarantee and is not otherwise
responsible for the equity and debt in these SPEs and does not participate in the profits or losses of these SPEs
but does have a performance guarantee to produce such films. Accordingly, the Company does not consolidate
these SPEs. Instead, the Company accounts for these arrangements based on their substance. That is, the net
benefit paid to the Company from these transactions is recorded as a reduction of film costs. These
transactions resulied in reductions of film costs totaling $177 million, $80 million and $60 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Once executed, the sale-leaseback arrangement obligates the Company to deliver a completed film to the
SPE. As of December 31, 2004, the Company is obligated (based on current production budgets) to spend
approximately $440 million to complete films covered by these arrangements.
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Covenanis and Rating Triggers

Each of the Company’s bank credit agreements, public debt and financing arrangements with SPEs
contain customary covenants. A breach of such covenants in the bank credit agreements that continues
beyond any grace period constitules a default, which can limit the Company’s ability to borrow and can give
rise to a right of the lenders to terminate the applicable facility and/or require immediate payment of any
outstanding debt. A breach of such covenants in the public debt beyond any grace period constitutes a default
which can require immediate payment of the outstanding debt. A breach of such covenants in the financing
arrangements with SPEs that continues beyond any grace period can constitute a termination event, which can
limit the facility as a future source of liquidity; however, there would be no claims on the Company for the
receivables or backlog contracts previously sold. Additionally, in the event that the Company’s credit ratings
decrease, the cost of maintaining the bank credit agreements and facilities and of borrowing increases and,
conversely, if the ratings improve, such costs decrease. There are no rating-based defaults or covenants in the
credit agreements, public debt or financing arrangements with SPEs.

As of December 31, 2004, and through the date of this filing, the Company was in compliance with all
covenants. Management does not foresee that the Company will have any difficulty in the foreseeable future
complying with the existing covenants.

Contractual and Other Obligations
Contractual Obligations

In addition to the previously discussed financing arrangements, the Company has obligations under
certain contractual arrangements to make future payments for goods and services. These contractual
obligations secure the future rights to various assets and services to be used in the normal course of operations.
For example, the Company is contractually committed to make certain minimum lease payments for the use
of property under operating lease agreements. In accordance with applicable accounting rules, the future rights
and obligations pertaining to firm commitments, such as operating lease obligations and certain purchase
obligations under contracts, are not reflected as assets or liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet.

The following table summarizes the Company’s aggregate contractual obligations at December 31, 2004,
and the estimated timing and effect that such obligations are expected to have on the Company’s liquidity and
cash flow in future periods.

2010 and
Contractual Obligations'" Total 2005 2006-2007 2008-2009 thercalter

(millions)

Outstanding debt obligations (Note 10) .. $22,144  §$1,557 $3,172 $2,388 $15,027

Capital lease obligations (Note 10) ...... 213 125 75 3 10
Operating lease obligations (Note 18) .. .. 4,844 588 1,071 939 2,246
Purchase obligations ... ................ 9,991 3,973 3,959 1.295 764

Total contractual obligations and
outstanding debt .................. $37.192  $6,243 $8.277 $4,625 $18,047

"Y' The table does not include the effects of certain put/call or olher buy-out arrangements involving certain of the Company’s investees, which are discussed
in more detail in the pages that follow.

108



TIME WARNER INC,
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION — (Continued)

The following is a description of the Company’s material contractual obligations at December 31, 2004:

Outstanding debt obligations — represents the principal amounts due on outstanding debt obligations,
current and long-term, as of December 31, 2004. Amounts do not include any lair value adjustments,
bond premiums, discounts or interest payments.

Capital lease obligations — represents the minimum capital lease payments under noncancelable
leases, primarily for network equipment at the AOL segment financed under capital leases.

Operating lease obligations — represents the minimum lease rental payments under noncancelable
leases, primarily for the Company’s real estate and operating equipment in various locations around the
world.

Purchase obligations — As it is used herein, a purchase obligation “represents an agreement to
purchase goods or services that is enforceable and legally binding on the Company and that specifies all
significant terms, including: fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased: fixed, minimum or variable
price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction.” The Company expects to receive
consideration (i.e., products or services) for these purchase obligations. The purchase obligation
amounts do not represent the enlire anticipated purchases in the future, but represent only those items
for which the Company is contractually obligated. Additionally, the Company also purchases products
and services as needed, with no firm commitment. For this reason, the amounts presented in the table
will not provide a reliable indicator of the Company’s expected future cash outfiows on a stand-alone
basis. For purposes of identifying and accumulating purchase obligations, the Company has included
all material contracts meeting the definition of a purchase obligation (e.g.. legally binding for a fixed or
minimum amount or quantity), For those contracts involving a fixed or minimum quantity, but variable
pricing, the Company has estimated the contractual obligation based on its best estimate of pricing that
will be in effect at the time the obligation is incurred. Additionally, the Company has included only the
obligation governed by those contracts that existed at December 31, 2004, and did not assume renewal
or replacement of the contract at the end of its term. If a contract includes a penalty for non-renewal,
the Company has included that penalty, assuming it will be paid in the period after the contract term
expires. If Time Warner can unilaterally terminate an agreement simply by providing a certain number
of days notice or by paying a termination [ee, the Company hus included the amount of the termination
fee or the amount that would be paid over the “notice period.” Contracts that can be unilaterally
terminated without incurring a penalty have not been included. The following table summarizes the
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Company’s purchase obligations at December 31, 2004, and the estimated timing and effect that such
obligations are expected to have on the Company’s liquidity and cash flow in future periods:

2010 and
Purchase Obligations Total 2005 2006-2007 2008-2009 therealter
(millions)

Network programming obligations'" ... ... $4,275  $1,250  $1,754 $ 838 $433
Narrowband and broadband network

obligations® ........................ 988 596 373 3 16
Creative talent and employment

agreements® ... . L 1,890 869 786 223 12
Obligations to purchase paper and 1o use

certain printing facilities for the

production of magazines and books .. ... 812 323 424 65 —
Obligations to certain investee companies'" 96 22 74 —_ —
Advertising, marketing and sponsorship

obligations® .. ..... ... .. ... ... ..., 466 345 97 24 —
Obligations to purchase information

technology licenses and services ........ 504 254 102 62 86
Other, primarily general and administrative

obligations'® .. ... ... .. ... ... ... . 960 314 349 80 217

Total purchase obligations .. ........... $9,991  $3,973 $3,959 $1,295 $764

The Networks segmenl enters inlo contracs o license sports programming 1o carry on its tefevision networks, The amounts in the table above represent
minimum payment obligations to sports leagues (e.g., NBA, NASCAR and MLB) to air the programming over the contract period. The Networks
segment also enlers into licensing agreements with certain movie studios lo acquire the rights to air movies that the movie studios release theatrically
(“Studio Movie Deals™). The pricing struclures in these contracts differ in that certain agreements can requise a fixed amount per movie while others will
be based on a percentage of the movie's box office receipts (with license fees generally capped at specified amounts). or a combination of both, The
amounts included herein represent obligations for movies that have been released theatrically as of December 31, 2004 and arc calculated using the uctual
or estimated box office performance or fixed amounts. as applicable.

Narrowband and broadband network obligations relate primarily to minimum purchase commitments that AOL has with various narrowband and
broadband network providers.

The Company's commitments under crealive talent and employment agrcements include obligations to executives, actors, producers, authors, sports
personnel and other talent under contractual arrangements. inciuding union contracts.

Obligations 1o certuin investee companies represent obligations (o purchasc additional intesests in a subsidiary of (he Publishing segment and fund
invesices within the AOL and Filmed Entertninment segments.

Advertising, marketing and sponsorship obligations include minimum guaranteed royalty and marketing payments {o vendors and content providers,
primarily of the AOL and Filmed Entertainment segments.

Other includes obligations to purchase general and administrative items such as legal. security. janitorial, office equipment, support and maintcnance
services, office supplies. obligations related to the Company's postretirement and unfunded defined benefit pension plans. as well as construction
commitments primarily for the Publishing and Filmed Entertainment segments.

Most of the Company’s other long-term liabilities reflected on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet have been incorporated in the estimated timing of cash payments provided in the summary of
contractual obligations, the most significant of which is an approximate $885 million liability for film licensing
obligations. However, certain long-term liabilities have been excluded from the summary because there are no
cash outflows associated with them (e.g., deferred revenue and mandatorily convertible preferred stock) or
because cash outflows associated with certain other noncurrent liabitities are uncertain (e.g., deferred taxes,

minority interests, participations and royalties, deferred compensation and other miscellaneous ilems).

Contractual capital commitments are also included in the preceding table, but these commitiments represent a

small part of the Company’s expected capital spending in 2005 and beyond. Additionally, minimum pension

funding requirements have not been presented, as such amounts have not been determined beyond 2005. The
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Company does not have a required minimum pension contribution obligation for its defined benefit pension
plans in 2005.

Other Contractual Obligations

In addition to the contractual obligations previously discussed, certain other contractual commitments of
the Company entail variable or undeterminable quantities and/or prices and, thus, do not meet the definition
of a purchase obligation. As certain of these commitments are significant to our business, the Company has
summarized these arrangements below. Given the variability in the terms of these arrangements, significant
estimates were involved in the determination of these obligations. Actual amounts, once known, could differ
significantly from these estimates.

2010 and
Other Contractual Commitments Total 2005 2006-2007 2008-2009 thereafter
(millions)
Cable and Network programming and
DVD manufacturing obligations ....... $16,589 $3,226 $5,786 $4,570 $3,007

The Company’s other contractual commitments at December 31, 2004 primarily consist of Cable
programming arrangements, future film licensing obligations and DVD manufacturing obligations. Cable
programming arrangements represent contracts that the Company’s Cable segment has with cable television
networks to provide programming service to its subscribers. Typically, these arrangements provide that the
Company purchase cable television programming for a certain number of subscribers provided that the
Company is providing cable services to such number of subscribers. There is generally no obligation to
purchase these services if the Company is not providing cable services. The obligation included in the above
table represents estimates of future cable programming costs based on subscriber levels at December 31, 2004,
and current contractual per subscriber rates. Network programming obligations represent Studio Movie Deal
commitments to acquire the right to air movies that will be released in the future (i.e., after December 31,
2004). These arrangements do not meel the definition of a purchase obligation since there are neither fixed nor
minimum quantities under the arrangemen!l. The amounts included herein have been estimated giving
consideration to historical box office performance and studio release trends. DVD manufacturing obligations
relate to a six-year agreement at the Filmed Entertainment segment with a third-party manufacturer to
purchase the Company’s DVD requirements. This arrangement does not meet the definition of a purchase
obligation since there are neither fixed nor minimum quantities under the arrangement. Amounts were
estimated using current DVD manufacturing volumes and pricing per manufactured DVD for each year of the
agreement.

The Company expects to fund its operating commitments and obligations with cash flow from operations
generated in the normal course of business.

Contingent Commitments

The Company also has certain contractual arrangements that would require the Company to make
payments or provide funding if certain circumstances occur (‘“‘contingent commitments”). For example, the
Company has guaranteed certain lease obligations of joint-venture investees. In this circumstance, the
Company would be required to make payments due under the lease to the lessor in the event of default by the
joint-venture investee. The Company does not expect that these contingent commitments will result in any
material amounts being paid by the Company in the foreseeable future.
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The following table summarizes separately the Company’s contingent commitments at December 31,
2004. The table identifies when the maximum contingent commitments will expire and does not mean that the
Company expects to incur an obligation to make any payments during that timeframe.

2010 and
Nature of Contingent Commitments Total 2005 2006-2007  2008-2009 thereafter
(millions)
Guarantees . ......oiiiiii i $2,327 $ 95 $185 $204 $1,843
Letters of credit and other contingent
commitments ...............cconivninnn. 531 394 6 I 130
Total contingent commitments........... $2,858  $489 $191 $205 $1,973

The following is a description of the Company’s contingent commitments at December 31, 2004:

» Guarantees include guarantees the Company has provided on certain lease and operating commitments
entered into by (a) entities formerly owned by the Company, as described below, and (b) joint
ventures in which the Company is or was a venture partner.

In connection with the Company’s former investment in the Six Flags theme parks located in Georgia
and Texas (“Six Flags Georgia™ and “Six Flags Texas,” respectively, and collectively, the “Parks”),
the Company agreed to guarantee (the “Six Flags Guarantee™) certain obligations relating 1o the
partnerships that hold the Parks (the “Partnerships”). The Six Flags Guarantee principally covers the
following obligations (the “Guaranteed Obligations™): (a) the obligation 1o make a minimum amount
of annual distributions to the limited partners of the Partnerships; (b) the obligation to make a
minimum amount of capital expenditures each year; (c¢) the requirement that an annual offer o
purchase be made in respect of 5% of the limited partnership units of the Partnerships (plus any such
units not purchased in any prior year) based on an aggregate price for all limited partnership units at
the higher of (i) $250 million in the case of Six Flags Georgia or $374.8 million in the case of Six Flags
Texas and (ii) a multiple of EBITDA and (d) either (i} the purchase of all of the outstanding limited
partnership units upon the earlier of the occurrence of certain specified events or the end of the term of
each of the Partnerships in 2027 (Six Flags Georgia) and 2028 (Six Flags Texas) (the “End of Term
Purchase™) or (ii) the obligation to cause each of the Partnerships to have no indebtedness and to
meet certain other financial tests as of the end of the term of the Partnership. The aggregate purchase
price in respect of all of the limited partnership units for the End of Term Purchase is equal to
$250 million in the case of Six Flags Georgia and $374.8 million in the case of Six Flags Texas (in each
case, subject to a consumer price index based adjustment calculated annually from 1998 in respect of
Six Flags Georgia and 1999 in respect of Six Flags Texas). Such aggregate amount will be reduced in
respect of limited partnership units previously purchased.

In connection with the 1998 sale of Six Flags Entertainment Corporation to Premier Parks Inc.
(“Premier”), Premier and the Company, among others, entered into a Subordinated Indemnity
Agreement pursuant to which Premier agreed to guarantee the performance of the Guaranteed
Obligations when due and to indemnify the Company, among others, in the event that the Guaranteed
Obligations are not performed and the Six Flugs Guarantee is called upon. Premier's obligations to the
Company are secured by its interest in all Jimiled partnership units that are purchased by Premier.

To date, no payments have been made by the Company pursuant to the Six Flags Guarantee.

+ Generally, letters of credit and surety bonds support performance and payments for a wide range of
global contingent and firm obligations including insurance, litigation appeals, import of finished goods,
real estate leases, cable installations and other operational needs. The Cable segment has obtained
letters of credit for several of its joint ventures. Should these joint ventures default on their obligations
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supported by the letters of credit, the Cable segment would be obligated to pay these costs to the extent
of the letters of credit.

Except as otherwise discussed above and below, Time Warner does not guarantee the debt of any its
investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Selected Investment Information
Cable Joint Ventures

On May 1, 2004, the Company completed the restructuring of two joint ventures that it manages, Kansas
City Cable Partners (“KCCP”), previously a 50-50 joint venture between Comcast and TWE serving
approximately 295,000 basic video subscribers as of December 31, 2004, and Texas Cable Partners, L.P.
(“TCP”), previously a 50-50 joint venture between Comcast and the TWE-Advance/Newhouse Partnership
(“TWE-A/N") serving approximately 1.224 million basic video subscribers as of December 31, 2004. Prior to
the restructuring, the Company accounted for its investment in these joint ventures using the equity method.
Under the restructuring, KCCP was merged into TCP, which was renamed “Texas and Kansas City Cable
Partners, L.P.” Following the restructuring, the combined partnership was owned 50% by Comcast and 50%
collectively by TWE and TWE-A/N. Since the net assets of the combined partnership were owned 50% by
Time Warner Cable and 50% by Comcast both before and after the restructuring and there were no changes in
the rights or economic interests of either party, the Company viewed the transaction as a non-substantive
reorganization to be accounted for at book value, similar to the transfer of assets under common control. In
February 2005, TWE’s interest in the combined partnership was contributed to TWE-A/N in exchange for
preferred equity in TWE-A/N. TWC Inc. continues to account for its investment in the restructured joint
venture using the equity method. Beginning any time after June 1, 2006, either TWC Inc. or Comcast can
trigger a dissolution of the partnership. If a dissolution is triggered, the non-triggering party has the right to
choose and take full ownership of one of two pools of the combined partnership’s systems — one pool
consisting of the Houston systems and the other consisting of the Kansas City and southwest Texas systems —
with an arrangement to distribute the partnership’s debt between the two pools. The party triggering the
dissolution would own the remaining pool of systems and any debt associated with that pool.

In 2004, TWE-A/N (which owns the Company’s equity stake in Texas and Kansas City Cable Partners,
L.P.) agreed to exlend its commitinent to provide a ratable share (i.e., 50%) of any funding required to
maintain certain Texas systems (i.e., Houston and southwest Texas systems) in compliance with their
financial covenants under the bank credit facilities (which facilities are otherwise nonrecourse to the
Company, its other subsidiaries or to the Kansas City systems). Funding made with respect to this funding
agreement is contributed to the Texas systems in the form of partner subordinated loans. The aggregate
amount of subordinated debt provided by TWE-A/N in 2004 with respect to its obligations under the funding
agreement was $33 million. TWE-A/N’s ultimate liability in respect of the funding agreement is dependent
upon the financial results of the Texas systems.

The existing bank credit facilities of the Texas systems and the Kansas City systems (approximately
$805 million in aggregale principal outstanding as of December 31, 2004 for the Texas systems and
$400 million in aggregate principal outstanding as of December 31, 2004 for the Kansas City systems) mature
at the earlier of June 30, 2007, for the Texas systems and March 31, 2007 for the Kansas City systems or the
refinancing thereof pursuant to the dissolution of the partnership.

As previously discussed under “Other Recent Developments,” TWC Inc. has also agreed to purchase,
subject to receipt of applicable regulatory approvals, all of Inner City’s interests in the Urban Cable venture
for approximately $53 million in cash. In addition, upon closing, TWC Inc. will eliminate in consolidation
$67 million of debt and interest owed to it by Urban Cable and will assume $53 million of Urban Cable’s
third-party debt. TWC Inc. is continuing to work with the local franchise authority to gain approval of its
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purchase of Urban Cable and management is currently unable to predict the timing of such approval. For the
year ended December 31, 2004, Urban Cable’s revenues and Operating Income were approximately
$47 million and $3 million, respectively.

Court TV Joint Venture

The Company and Liberty Media (“Liberty”) each have a 50% interest in Court TV. Beginning January
2006, Liberty may give written notice to Time Warner requiring Time Warner to purchase all of Liberty’s
interest in Court TV (the “Liberty Put”). In addition, as of the same date, Time Warner may, by notice to
Liberty, require Liberty to sell all of its interest in Court TV to Time Warner (the “Time Warner Call"). The
price 1o be paid upon exercise of either the Liberty Put or the Time Warner Call will be an amount equal to
one-half of the fair market value of Court TV, determined by an appraisal. The consideration is required to be
paid in cash if the Liberty Put is exercised. If the Time Warner Call is exercised, the consideration is also
payable in cash only if Liberty determines that the transaction cannot be structured as a tax efficient
transaction, or if Time Warner determines that a tax efficient transaction may either violate applicable law or
cause a breach or default under any other agreement affecting Time Warner. For the year ended
December 31, 2004, Court TV’s Operating Income was approximately $36 million.

Bookspan Joint Venture

The Company and Bertelsmann each have a 50% interest in the Bookspan joint venture, which operates
the U.S. book clubs of Book-of-the-Month Club, Inc., and Doubleday Direct, Inc. Under the General
Partnership Agreement, beginning on June 30, 2005, and then on January 1 of each subsequent year, either
Bertelsmann or the Company may elect to lerminate the partnership by giving notice during 60-day
termination periods. If such an election is made, a confidential bid process will take place, pursuant to which
the highest bidder will purchase the other party’s entire venture interest. The Company is unable to predict
whether this bid process will occur or the amount that may be paid out or received under it. For the year ended
December 31, 2004, the Bookspan joint venture had Operating Income of approximately $26 million.

Backlog

Backlog represents the amount of future revenue not yet recorded from cash contracts for the licensing of
theatrical and television product for pay cable, basic cable, network and syndicated television exhibition.
Backlog was approximately $3.7 billion and $3.9 billion at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003,
respectively. Included in these amounts is licensing of film product from the Filmed Entertainment segment to
the Networks segment of $514 million and $740 million at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003,
respectively.

Because backlog generally relates to contracts for the licensing of theatrical and television product which
have already been produced, the recognition of revenue for such completed product is principally dependent
upon the commencement of the availability period for telecast under the terms of the related licensing
agreement. Cash licensing fees are collected periodically over the term of the related licensing agreements or,
as referenced above and discussed in more detail in Note 10 to the accompanying consolidated financial
stalements, on an accelerated basis using a $500 million securitization facility. The portion of bucklog for
which cash has not already been received has significant value as a source of future funding. Of the
approximately $3.7 billion of backlog relating to the Filmed Entertainment segment as of December 31, 2004,
Time Warner has recorded $437 million of deferred revenue on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet,
representing cash received through the utilization of the backlog securitization facility. The backlog excludes
filmed entertainment advertising barter contracts, which are also expected to result in the future realization of
revenues and cash through the sale of advertising spots received under such contracts.
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MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates and changes in the market value of financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

Time Warner has issued variable-rate debt that, at December 31, 2004, had an outstanding balance of
$1.523 billion. Based on Time Warner's variable-rate obligations ouistanding at December 31, 2004, each
25 basis point increase or decrease in the level of interest rates would, respectively, increase or decrease Time
Warner’s annual interest expense and related cash payments by approximately $4 million. Such potential
increases or decreases are based on certain simplifying assumptions, including a constant level of variable-rate
debt for all maturities and an immediate, across-the-board increase or decrease in the level of interest rates
with no other subsequent changes for the remainder of the period. Conversely. since almost all of the
Compuny’s cash balunce of approximately $6.139 billion is invested in variable-rate interest earning assets. the
Company would also earn more (less) interest income due (o such an increase (decrease) in interest rates.

Time Warner has entered into fixed-rate debt that. at December 31, 2004, had an outstanding balance of
$20.393 billion and a fair value of $23.400 billion. Based on Time Warner's fixed-rate debt obligations
outstanding al December 31, 2004, a 25 basis point increase or decrease in the level of interest rates would,
respectively, decrease or increase the fair value ol the tixed-rate debt by approximately $449 million. Such
potential increases or decrcases are based on certain simplifying assumptions, including a constant level and
rate of fixed-rate debt and an immediate across-the-bourd increase or decrease in the level of interest rates
with no other subsequent changes for the remainder of the period.

From time to time, the Company uses interest rate swaps to hedge the [air valuc of its fixed-rate
obligations. Under the interest rate swap contract, the Company agrees to receive a fixed-rate payment (in
most cases equal lo the stated coupon rate of the bond being hedged) for a floating-rate payment. The net
payment on the swap is exchanged at a specified interval that usually coincides with the bonds underlying
coupon payment on the agreed upon notional amount,

At December 31, 2004, interest rate swaps with a notional amount of $200 million were outstanding.
These swaps mature in June 2005 and are designated as hedging the fair value of certain ol the Company's
fixed-rate debt. The swaps effectively convert the fixed-rate debt to variable-rate instruments indexed to
LIBOR. These swaps have been designated as a fair value hedge of the changes in fair value of the Company’s
fixed-rate debt, attributable to changes in benchmark interest rates. As key terms of the swap match the debt
they are intended to hedge, changes in the fair value of the swap are substantially offset in the consolidated
statement of operations by changes in the fair value of the hedged item. The fair value of these swaps at
December 31, 2004 was not material.

The Company monitors its positions with, and the credit quality of, the financial institutions, which are
party to any of its financial transactions. Credit risk related 1o interest rate swaps is considered low because
swaps are entered into with strong, creditworthy counterparties and are limited to the nel interest payments
receivable, il any, for the remaining life of the swap.

Foreign Currency Risk

Time Warner uses forecign exchange contracts primarily to hedge the risk that unremitted or Tuture
royalties and license [ees owed to Time Warner domestic companies for the sale or anticipated sale of
U.S. copyrighted products abroad may be adversely affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
Similarly, the Company enters into loreign exchange contracts to hedge certain film production costs abroad
as well as other transaclions, assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign curvency. As part of its overall
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strategy to manage the level of exposure to the risk of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, primarily
exposure to changes in the value of the British pound and the Euro. Time Wamer hedges a portion of its
foreign currency exposures anticipated over an eighteen-month period beginning in January of each vear (the
“hedging period”). The hedging period for royalties and license fees covers revenues expected to be
recognized over the ensuing fiscal year; however, there is often a lag between the time that revenue is
recognized and the transfer of foreign denominated cash revenues back into U.S. dollars. Therefore, the
hedging period covers an eighteen-month period. To hedge this exposure, Time Warner uses foreign exchange
contracts that generally have maturities of three months to eighteen months providing continuing coverage
throughout the hedging period. At December 31, 2004, Time Wamer had effectively hedged approximately
70% of the estimated net foreign currency exposures that relate principally to anticipated cash flows for
royalties and license fees to be remitted to the U.S. over the ensuing hedging period.

At December 31, 2004, Time Warner had contracts for the sale of $3.375 billion and the purchase of
$1.714 billion of foreign currencies at fixed rates, including net contracts for the sale of $496 million of the
British pound and $825 million of the Euro. At December 31, 2003, Time Warner had contracts lor the sale of
$3.544 billion and the purchase of $1.934 billion of foreign currencies at lixed rates, including net contracts for
the sale of $692 million of the British pound and $633 million of the Euro.

Based on the foreign exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2004, each 10% devaluation of the
U.S. dollar as compared to the level of foreign exchange rates for currencies under contract at Deccmber 31,
2004 would result in approximately $166 million of net unrealized losses. Conversely, a 10% appreciation of
the U.S. dollar would result in approximately $166 million of net unrealized gains. For a hedge of forecasted
royalty or license fees denominated in a foreign currency, consistent with the nature of the economic hedge
provided by such foreign exchange contracts, such unrealized gains or losses largely would be offset by
corresponding decreases or increases, respectively, in the dollar value of future foreign currency royalty and
license fee payments that would be received in cash within the hedging period from the sale of
U.S. copyrighted products abroad.

Equity Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk as it relates to changes in the market value of its investments,
including the investment in Google. The Company invests in equity instruments of public and private
companies for operutional and strategic business purposes. These securilies are subject to significant
{Tuctuations in fair market value due to volatility of the stock market and the industries in which the
companies operate. These securities, which are classified in Investments. including available-for-sale securities
on the accompanying consolidated balunce sheet, include equity-method investiments, investiments in private
securities, available-for-sale securities, restricted securities and equily derivative instruments. As ol Decem-
ber 31, 2004, the Company had $121 million of cost-method investments, primarily relating to private equity
sccurities, $1.958 billion of fair value investments, including $1.866 billion of investments in unrestricted
public equity securities held for purposes other than trading and $92 million of equity derivative instruments
(including the Company’s option in WMG) und $2.624 billion of investments accounted for using the equity
method of accounting.

Included in the $1.866 billion of investments in unrestricted public equity securitics held for purposes
other than trading is thc Company’s investment in Google, which has a fair valuc of approximatcly
$980 million based on the December 31, 2004 market value of Google stock of $192.79 per share. A 10%
appreciation in the stock price of Google would result in an increase in the Company’s unrealized gain on this
investment of approximately $59 million, net of tax. Conversely, a 10% depreciation in the stock price of
Google would result in a decrease in the Company’s unrealized gain on this investment of approximately
$59 million. net of tax. As of February 28, 2005, Google stock closed at $187.99 per share, which decrcased
the fair value of the Company's investment (o approximately $955 million.
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The value of the WMG option is subject to fluctuations based upon the equity value of the Warner Music
Group. A 10% increase or decrease in the equity value of the Warner Music Group would have a $6 million
impact on the value of the option. The Warner Music Group is in a transition phase as it continues to
restructure its operations. Accordingly, the value of the WMG option may change significantly, depending on
the success of this restructuring and the general conditions in the music industry.

As a result of declines in the value of certain investments, the Company has recorded noncash pretax
charges of $29 million in 2004, $204 million in 2003 and $2.199 billion in 2002. These charges were primarily
1o reduce the carrying value of certain publicly traded and privately held investiments, restricted securities and
investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting that had experienced other-than-temporary
declines in value. In addition, these charges reflect market fluctuations in equity derivative instruments, which
resulted in losses of §14 million in 2004, gains of $8 million in 2003 and gains of $13 million in 2002 (Note 7).
While Time Warner has recognized all declines that are believed to be other-than-temporary, it is reasonably
possible that individual investments in the Company’s portfolio may experience an other-than-temporary
decline in value in the future if the underlying investee company experiences poor operating results or if the
U.S. equity markets experience future broad declines in value. See Note 7 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for additional discussion.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The SEC considers an accounting policy to be critical if it is important to the Company’s financial
condition and results, and if it requires significant judgment and estimates on the part of management in its
application. The development and selection of these critical accounting policies have been determined by the
management of Time Warner and the related disclosures have been reviewed with the Audit and Finance
Committee of the Board of Directors. For a summary of all of the Company’s significant accounting policies,
see Note | to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition areas that incorporate significant judgment and estimates by management include
the accounting for multiple-element transactions and gross versus net revenue recognition. See Note | for
additional discussion.

Multiple-Element Transactions
Multiple-element transactions within Time Warner fall broadly into iwo categories:

1. Contemporaneous purchases and sales. The Company sells a product or service (e.g., advertising
services) to a customer and at the same time purchases goods or services and/or makes an investment
in that customer.

2. Sales of multiple products or services. The Company sells multiple products or services lo a
counterparty.

Contemporaneous Purchases and Sales

In the normal course of business, Time Warner enters into transactions in which it purchases a product or
service and/or makes an investment in a customer and at the same time negotiates a contract for the sale of
advertising, or other product, to the customer. Contemporaneous transactions may also involve circumstances
where the Company is purchasing or selling goods and services and setiling a Company dispute. For example,
the AOL segment may have negotiated for the sale of advertising at the same time it purchased goods or
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services and/or madc an investment in a counterparty. Similarly, when negotiating programming arrange-
ments with cable networks, the Company’s Cable segment may negotiate for the sale of advertising to the
cable network. '

Arrangements, although negotiated contemporancously, may be decumented in one or more contracts. In
accounting for such arrangements, the Company looks 1o the guidance contained in the {ollowing authoritative
literature:

» APB Opinion No. 29, *Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions” (“APB 29");

* FASB Statement 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — an amendment of APB Opinion
No. 29”7 (“FAS 1537);

» Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a
Vendor to a Customer” (“EITF 01-09"); and

» EITF Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration
Received from a Vendor” (“EITF 02-16").

The Company accounts for each transaction negotiated contemporaneously based on the respective fair
values of the goods or services purchased and the goods or services sold. If the Company is unable to
determine the fair value of one or more of the elements being purchased, revenue recognition is limited to the
total consideration received for the products or services sold less supported payments. For example, if the
Company sells advertising to a customer for $10 million in cash and conlemporancously enters inlo an
arrangement 1o acquire sofiware for $2 million from {he same customer; however, fair value for the sofiware
cannot be reliably determined. the Company would limit the recognized advertising revenue to $8 million and
would ascribe no value to the software acquisition. As another example, if the Company sells advertising Lo a
customer for $10 million in cash and contemporaneously invests $2 million in the equily of that same
custorer at fair value, the Company would recognize advertising revenue of $10 million and would ascribe
$2 million to the equity investment. Accordingly, the judgments made in determining fair value in such
arrangements impacts the amount and period in which revenues, expenses and net income are recognized over
the term of the contract,

In determining the fair value of the respective clements, the Company refers to quoted market prices
(where available), historical transactions or comparable cash ransactions. In addition, the existence of price
protection in the form of “most favored mation” clauses or similar contractual provisions are generally
indicative that the stated terms of a transaction are at [air value.

Further, in a contemporancous purchase and sale transaction, evidence of fair value for one element of a
transaction may provide support for the fair value of the other element of a transaction. For example, if the
Company sells advertising (o a customer and contemporaneously invests in the equity of that same customer,
evidence of the fair value of the investment may implicitly support the fair value of the advertising sold. since
there are only two elements in the arrangement.

During 2004, the Company encountered judgments in the following conlemporaneous transactions:

s Sale of Winter Sports Teams. Conlcmporancous with the announced sale of the winter sports tcams,
the Company entered into an agreement with the buyer whereby its cable network operations would
license the right to telecast the winter sports teams’ games over a six-year period. In accounting for the
sale, the Company has recorded a one-time loss in Operating Income based on the proceeds received.
In contrast, the costs incurred under the licensing agreement will be recorded as an expense in
Operating Income over the life of the licensing agreecment. The key judgment is ensuring that both the
sale arrangement and the licensing agreement are atl fair value terms.
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* Sale of Investment in Gateway. Contemporaneous with a sale of its interest in Gateway securities to
Gateway, the Company received (1) cash and (2) the right to use a portion of the sale proceeds to
offset amounts due to Gateway related to existing customer acquisition agreements between the
parties. Additionally, the Company and Gateway agreed to settle an existing commercial dispute
resulting in the Company paying Gateway approximately $3 million for the settlement. In accounting
for the sale of the investment, the Company has recorded a one-time gain in Other income (expense),
net (below Operating Income). In contrast, the one-time amount paid in settlement of the commercial
dispute was recorded as expense in Operating Income. The key judgment in this transaction is ensuring
that both the sale of securities and the settlement of the commercial dispute are at fair value terms.

« Urban Cable Works of Philadelphia, L.P. Contemporaneous with the Company’s settlement of
certain disputes with Inner City regarding the Urban Cable joint venture for $34 million, the Company
also agreed to purchase, subject to the receipt of applicable regulatory approvals, all of Inner City’s
interests in the venture for approximately $53 million in cash. In accounting for the settlement of the
disputes, the Company has recorded a one-time loss in Operating Income. In contrast, the amount paid
to purchase Inner City’s interest in Urban Cable will be recorded primarily as goodwill and franchise
intangible assets, which will be subject 1o the Company’s annual test for impairment. The key
judgment is ensuring that both the settlement of the disputes and the purchase of Inner City’s interest
are at fair value terms.

+ Adelphia Communications Corporation Settlement. Contemporaneous with the Company’s settle-
ment of pre-petition bankruptcy claims (e.g., accounts receivable) with Adelphia, the Company
rencwed its programming agreement with Adelphia. In accounting for the settlement of the pre-
petition bankruptcy claims, the cash received is treated as a reduction of the related accounts
receivable on the consolidated balance sheet. In contrast, the programming agreement will be recorded
as an expense in Operating Income over the life of the agreement. The key judgment is ensuring that
the settlement of pre-petition bankruptcy claims and the rates payable to the Company as part of the
programming agreement are at fair value terms.

* Comcast Tolling and Optional Redemption Agreement. The Company’s TWC Inc. subsidiary
granted to Comcast an option, which originally could be exercised between December 1, 2004 and
April 1, 2005, 1o redeem a portion of TWC Inc. stock held by Comcast in exchange for cable systems
and cash. In exchange, Comcast agreed not to pursue registration rights with respect to the TWC Inc.
stock owned by it until April 1, 2005. The key judgment is ensuring that the option granted by the
Company to Comcast and Comcast’s agreement to defer pursuing its registration rights on the TWC
Inc. stock it currently holds are at fair value terms.

In each of these transactions, based on a thorough review of fair value evidence, the Company concluded
that the stated terms of each transaction represented fair value and, accordingly, the Company accounted for
each contract separately, based on its stated terms.

Sales of Multiple Products or Services

The Company’s policy for revenue recognition in instances where multiple deliverables are sold
contemporaneously to the same counterparty is in accordance with EITF Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables™ and SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recogni-
tion.” Specifically, if the Company enters into sales contracts for the sale of multiple products or services, then
the Company evaluates whether it has objective fair value evidence for each deliverable in the transaction. If
the Company has objective fair value evidence for each deliverable of the transaction, then it accounts for
each deliverable in the transaction separately, based on the relevant revenue recognition accounting policies.
However, if the Company is unable to determine objective fair value for one or more undelivered elements of
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the transaction, the Company generally recognizes Advertising revenue on a straight-line basis over the term
of the agreement, For example, the AOL division might enter into an agreement for broadband service that
includes AOL providing a modem in connection with the service and the subscriber paying an upfront fee as
well as monthly charges. Because AOL is providing both a product and a service, revenue is allocated to the
modem and service based on relative fair value,

Gross versus Net Revenue Recognition

In the normal course of business, the Company acts as or uses an intermediary or agent in executing
transactions with third parties. The accounting issue encountered in these arrangements is whether the
Company should report revenue based on the gross amount billed to the ultimate customer or on the net
amount received from the customer after commissions and other payments to third parties. To the extent
revenues are recorded on a gross basis, any commissions or other payments to third parties are recorded as
expenses so that the net amount (gross revenues less expenses) is reflected in Operating Income. Accordingly,
the impact on Operating Income is the same whether the Company records the revenue on a gross or net basis.
For example, if the Company’s Filmed Entertainment segment distributes a film to a theater for $15 and
remits $10 to the independent production company, representing their share of proceeds, the Company must
determine if the Filmed Entertainment segment should record gross revenue from the theater of $15 and $10
of expenses or if they should record as revenue the net amount recognized of $5. In either case, the impact on
Operating Income is $5.

Determining whether revenue should be reported as gross or net is based on an assessment of whether the
Company is acting as the principal or acting as an agent in the transaction. To the extent that the Company is
acting as a principal in a transaction, the Company reports revenue on a gross basis. To the extent that the
Company is acting as an agent in a transaction, the Company reports revenue on a net basis. The
determination of whether the Company is acting as a principal or an agent in a transaction involves judgment
and is based on an evaluation of the terms of an arrangement.

In determining whether the Company serves as principal or agent, the Company follows the guidance in
EITF 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent” (“EITF 99-19”). Pursuant to
such guidance, the Company serves as the principal in transactions in which it has substantial risks and
rewards of ownership.

Specifically, the Company has the following examples of arrangements where it is an intermediary or uses
an intermediary:

¢ The Filmed Entertainment segment distributes films on behalf of independent film producers. The
Filmed Entertainment segment may provide motion picture distribution services for an independent
production company in the worldwide theatrical, home video and television markets. The arrangement
may cover multiple films that the independent film company has produced and owns the underlying
copyright thereto. In addition, the independent film company may work collaboratively with the
Filmed Entertainment segment regarding the distribution, marketing, advertising and publicity of each
film in all media, including the timing and extent of the theatrical releases, the pricing and packaging
of home video units and the approval of all television licenses. The Filmed Entertainment segment
records revenue generaled in such arrangements on a gross basis if it is the primary obligor and on a net
basis if it is acting as an agent. The Filmed Entertainment segment is the merchant of record for the
licensing arrangements, is the licensor/contracting party, provides the film materials to licensees and
handles the billing and collection of all amounts due under such arrangements.

+ The Publishing segment utilizes subscription agents to generate magazine subscriptions. The
Publishing segment may generate magazine subscriptions by utilizing subscription agents. Typically,
the agent secures subscriptions in exchange for a percentage of the subscription price. The Publishing
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segment has recorded subscription revenue generated by the agent net of any fees paid to the agent
because the subscription agent has the primary contact with the customer, performs all of the billing
and collection activities and passes the net proceeds from the subscription to the Publishing segment
after removing the agent’s commission.

* The AOL segment sells advertising on behalfl of third parties. AOL may sell advertising 1o be
displayed on a public website (outside of the AOL service) on behalf of a third party. Generally, AOL
records revenue generated from such sales on a gross basis because AOL is responsible for identifying
and contracting with third-party advertisers, establishing the selling price of the inventory, delivering
the advertisements at AOL’s cost and expense, performing all billing and collection activities and
bearing sole liability for fulfilment of advertising.

« The Cable segment bills for reimbursement of taxes paid to franchising authorities. Included in the
monthly bill to the Cable segment’s customer is a line item identifying the reimbursement of taxes
being paid by the cable company to the franchising authorities. The Cable segment includes in its
determination of revenues the amounts received from the customer representing a reimbursement of
franchise taxes paid by the cable company to the {ranchising authorities because the Cable segment is
considered to be the primary obligor with respect to the customer purchasing the service and is
assuming the credit risk (i.e., the Cable segment would still be required to remit the tax if the customer
does not pay).

Asset Impairments
Investments

The Company’s investments consist of fair value investments, including available-for-sale securities,
investments accounted for using the cost method of accounting and investments accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. See Note 7 for additional discussion. A judgmental aspect of accounting for
investments involves determining whether an other-than-temporary decline in value of the investment has
been sustained. If it has been determined that an investment has sustained an other-than-temporary decline in
its value, the investment is written down to its fair value, by a charge to earnings. Such an evaluation is
dependent on the specific facts and circumstances. Factors that are considered by the Company in
determining whether an other-than-temporary decline in value has occurred include: the market value of the
security in relation to its cost basis, the financial condition of the investee and the intent and ability to retain
the investment for a sufficient period of time to allow for recovery in the market value of the investment.

In evaluating the factors above for available-for-sale securities, management presumes a decline in value
to be other-than-temporary if the quoted market price of the security is 20% or more below the investment’s
cost basis for a period of six months or more (the “20% criterion™) or the quoted market price of the security
is 50% or more below the security’s cost basis at any quarter end (the “50% criterion™). However, the
presumption of an other-than-temporary decline in these instances may be overcome if there is persuasive
evidence indicating that the decline is temporary in nature (e.g., strong operating performance of invesiee,
historical volatility of investee, etc.). Additionally, there may be instances in which impairment losses are
recognized even if the 20% and 50% criteria are not satisfied (e.g., there is a plan to sell the security in the near
term and the fair value is below the Company’s cost basis).

For investments accounted for using the cost or equity method of accounting, management cvaluates
information (e.g., budgets, business plans, financial statements, etc.) in addition to quoted market prices, if
any, in determining whether an other-than-temporary decline in value exists. Factors indicative of an other-
than-temporary decline include recurring operating losses, credit defaults and subsequent rounds of financing
at an amount below the cost basis of the investment. This list is not exhaustive, and management weighs all
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known quantitative and qualitative factors in determining if an other-than-temporary decline in the value of an
investment has occurred.

While Time Warner has recognized all declines that are believed to be other-than-temporary, it is
reasonably possible that individual investments in the Company’s portlolio may experience an other-than-
temporary decline in value in the future if the underlying investee company experiences poor operating results
or if the U.S. equity markets experience future broad declines in value. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
the Company had no significant investments for which the fair value of the investment was below its carrying
value.

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill impairment is determined using a two-step process. The first step of the goodwill impairment
test is 1o identify a potential impairment by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying
amount, including goodwill. The estimates of fair value of a reporting unit, generally the Company’s operating
segments, are determined using various valuation techniques, with the primary technique being a discounted
cash flow analysis. A discounted cash flow analysis requires one to make various judgmental assumptions
including assumptions about future cash flows, growth rates and discount rates. The assumptions about future
cash flows and growth rates are based on the Company’s budget and business plans. Discount rate assumptions
are based on an assessment of the risk inherent in the respective reporting units. In estimating the fair values
of its reporting units, the Company also used analyst estimates, as well as comparable market analyses. If the
fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is not deemed
impaired and the second step of the impairment test is not performed. If the carrying amount of a reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the
amount of impairment loss, if any. The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the
amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination. That is, the fair value of the reporting unit is
allocated to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit (including any unrecognized intangible assets) as if the
reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was the
purchase price paid 1o acquire the reporting unit.

The impairment test {for other intangible assets not subject to amortization consists of a comparison of the
fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying value. If the carrying value of the intangible asset exceeds its
fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The estimates of fair value of
intangible assets not subject to amortization are determined using various discounted cash flow valuation
methodologies. The most common among these is a “relief from royalty” methodology, which is used in
estimating the fair value of the Company’s brands and trademarks, and income methodologies, which are used
to value cable and sports franchises. Market and income-based methodologies were used to value sports
franchises. Significant assumptions inherent in the methodologies employed include estimates of royalty rates
and discount rates. Discount rate assumptions are based on an assessment of the risk inherent in the respective
intangible assets. Assumptions about royalty rates are based on the rates at which similar brands and
trademarks are being licensed in the marketplace.

The Company’s annual impairment analysis, which was performed during the fourth quarter, did not
result in an impairment charge for 2004. In order to evaluate the sensitivity of the fair value calculations of the
Company'’s reporting units on the impairment calculation, the Company applied a hypothetical 10% decrease
to the fair values of each reporting unit. This hypothetical decrease would not result in the impairment of
goodwill at any reporting unit. A hypothetical 10% decrease to the fair values of indefinite-lived intangible

122



TIME WARNER INC.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION — (Continued)

assets would result in an impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets at Cable ($412 million, franchises)
and Time Warner Book Group, a business included in the Publishing segment ($5 million, trademarks).

Accounting for Pension Plans

Time Warner and certain of its subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans covering a majority of
domestic employees and, to a lesser extent, international employees. Pension benefits are based on formulas
that reflect the employees’ years of service and compensation during their employment period and participa-
tion in the plans. The Company recognized domestic pension expense of $156 million in 2004, $202 million in
2003 and $94 million in 2002. The pension expense recognized by the Company is determined using certain
assumptions, including the discount rate, the expected long-term rate of return on plun assets and the rate of
compensation increases. See Noles | and |5 for additional discussion. The determination of assumptions for
domestic pension plans is discussed in more detail below.

The Company used a discount rate of 6.25% to compute 2004 pension expense. The discount rate was
determined by reference to the Moody’s Aa Corporate Bond Index, adjusted for coupon frequency and
duration of obligation. A decrease in the discount rate of 25 basis points, from 6.25% to 6.00%, while holding
all other assumptions constant, would have resulted in an increase in the Company’s domestic pension expense
of approximately $18 million in 2004.

The Company’s expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets used to compute 2004 pension expense
was 8%. In developing the expected long-term rate of return, the Company considered the pension portfolio’s
past average rate of earnings, portfolio composition and discussions with portfolio managers. The expected
long-term rate of return is based on an asset allocation assumption of 75% equities and 25% fixed-income
securities, which approximated the actual allocation as of December 31, 2004, A decrease in the expected
long-term rate of return of 25 basis points, from 8.00% to 7.75%, while holding all other assumptions constant,
would have resulted in an increase in the Company’s domestic pension expense of approximately $5 million in
2004.

The Company used an estimated rate of future compensation increases of 4.5% to compute 2004 pension
expense. An increase in the rate of 25 basis points while holding all other assumptions constant would have
resulted in an increase in the Company’s domestic pension expense of approximately $4 million in 2004,

Filmed Entertainment Revenues and Costs

The Company accounts for filn. and television production costs, as well as related revenues (“film
accounting”), in accordance with the guidance in Statement of Position (“SOP™) 00-2, “Accounting by
Producers or Distributors ol Films” (“SOP 00-2"). See Note 1 for additional discussion. An aspect of film
accounting that requires the exercise of judgment relates to the process of estimating the total revenues to be
received throughout a film’s life cycle. Such estimate of a film’s “ultimate revenue™ is important for two
reasons. First, for completed films and while a film is being produced and the relaled costs are being
capitalized. it is necessary for munagement {o estimate the ultimale revenues, less additional costs to be
incurred, including exploitation costs, in order to determine whether the carryving value of a film is impaired
and thus requires an immediate write-off of unrecoverable film costs. Second, the amount of capitalized film
costs recognized as cost of revenues for a given film as it is exhibiled in various markets. throughout its life
cycle, s based upon the proportion of the film’s revenues recognized for such period to the film’s estimated
ultimate total revenues. Similarly, the recognition of participations and residuals is based upon the proportion
of the film’s revenues recognized for such period to the film’s estimated ultimate total revenues.

Management bases ifs estimates of ultimate revenue for each film on the historical performance of similar
films. incorporating factors such as the star power of the lead actors and actresses, the genre of the film,
prerelease market research (including test market screenings), the expected number of theaters in which the
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film will be released and the expected home video or DVD release date, if any. Management updates such
estimates based on information available on the progress of a film’s production and, upon release, the actual
results of each film. For example, a filin which has resulted in lower-than-expected theatrical revenues in its
initial weeks of release would have its theatrical, home video and distribution ultimate revenues adjusted
downward; a failure to do so would understate the amortization of capitalized film costs for the peried. Since
the amount of capitalized film cost to be amortized for a given film is fixed, the estimate of ultimate revenues
impacts only the timing of film cost amortization. However, since participation and residuals costs are
generally based on the financial results of a film, a reduction in estimated ultimate film revenue would
similarly reduce the recognition of participation and residual costs.

Sales Returns and Uncollectible Accounts

One area of judgment affecting reported revenue and net income is management’s estimate ol product
sales that will be returned and the amount of receivables that will ultimately be collected. In determining the
estimate of product sales that will be returned, management analyzes historical returns, current economic
trends and changes in customer demand and acceptance of Time Warner's products. Based on this
information, management reserves a percentage of each dollar ol product sales that provide the customer with
the right of return. See Note 1| for additional discussion.

Similarly, management evaluates accounts receivable to determine if they will ultimately be collected. In
performing this evaluation, significant judgments and estimates are involved, including an analysis of specific
risks on a customer-by-customer basis for larger accounts. and an analysis of reccivables aging that determines
the percent that has historically been uncollected by aged category. Using this information, management
reserves an amount that is believed to be uncoliectible. Based on management’s analysis of sales returns and
uncollectible accounts, reserves totaling $2.109 billion and $2.079 billion have been established at Decem-
ber 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Total gross accounts receivable were $7.621 billion and $6.987 billion at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company’s products subject to return include DVDs and videocassettes at the Filmed Entertainment
and Networks divisions and magazines, books and direct sales merchandise at the Publishing division. At
December 31, 2004, total reserves for returns were approximately $854 million, $97 million and $337 million
at the Filmed Entertainment, Networks and Publishing segments, respectively. See Note 1 for additional
discussion.

RISK FACTORS AND CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Risk Factors

If the events discussed in these risk factors occur, the Company’s business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the market price of the
Company’s common stock could decline.

The Company's America Online business continues to face substantial competition in maintaining and
growing its subscriber base, in developing compelling products and services, and in increasing revenues from
sources other than fees for the AOL service, and if Amevica Online is unable 1o meet its competitive challenges,
the Company’s financial results could be adversely affected. During the last several years, the online services
industry has been changing from one in which the only way for a household to access the Internet was through
narrowband (i.e., telephone ‘“dial-up™) Internet access provided by Internet service providers to one in which
households can access the Internet through a variety of connection methods, such as cable modems, DSL or
wireless connections offered by a number of different providers, including Internet service providers, cable
companies and telephone and other telecommunications companies. As a result, significant price and service
competition for Internet access exists. Furthermore, unlike some of its competitors, AOL does not own or
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control access to a high-speed network that it can provide directly to its subscribers. As a result primarily of
these factors, America Online has experienced declines in subscribers throughout 2003 and 2004, and declines
are expected to continue into the foreseeable future. Declines in subscribers have resulted in decreased
Subscription revenues and have had an adverse impact on profitability. The decline in membership may also
adversely impact Advertising revenues generated from the AOL service.

Since late 2002, America Online’s strategy has focused on improving and expanding its Internet products
and services, including enhancement or upgrade to the content and features provided through the flagship
AOL service, and introducing premium services, as well as reducing costs. In late 2004, America Online
reorganized its operating structure and expanded its strategy from attracting and retaining subscribers,
especially those who access the Internet via a high-speed connection, to focus also on increasing the value of
and maintaining or increasing the size of its U.S. and worldwide audience to the America Online network of
sites, content and services (as described in the Business section). America Online’s strategy continues to
include the development and offering of additional products and services 1o existing subscribers, as well as to
Internet users in general. The success of its strategy will depend on a number of factors. including competition,
the rate of decline in the number of subscribers to the AOL service, the ability to generate more activity on,
and to attract more people to, its network of sites, content and services, the growth of the online advertising
business, the ability to secure agreements with third parties for distribution of America Online products and
services, accurate forecasting of consumer preferences, and the ability to anticipate and keep up with
technological developments. If America Online is unsuccessful, Time Warner’s financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows could be adversely aflected.

With respect to “‘dial-up’ narrowband Internet access, America Online faces significant competition from
other Internet service providers, particularly those with low-price offerings. To meet this competition through
ways other than price reductions, America Online has focused on improving the quality of features and
content provided on its flagship AOL service to seek, attract and retain narrowband Internet users, for
example, by providing the McAfee Virus Scan product to AOL members without additional charge. America
Online also operates lower-priced Internet services to compete with the low-price ISPs. Tt is too carly to
determine whether these services will be successful in retaining existing and attracting subscribers.

America Online expects to continue to experience declines in the number of subscribers. Lach year, a
significant portion of AOL members cancel thetr membership or are terminated by America Online either for
non-payment ol account charges or violation of one of the terms of service that apply to members (for
example, sending spam e-mails or violating community guidelines in chat rooms). In addition, maintaining
and growing the subscriber base is dillicult becausc the larger the subscriber base, the greater the number of
new subscribers required to offset those subscribers who cancel or are terminated. Prior to 2003, Amcrica
Onlinc had been able to attract suflicient new members to more than offset cancellations and terminations. In
2003 and 2004, however, America Online did not register new members in numbers sufticient to replace the
subscribers who canceled or were terminated. One important reason for the declining number of subscribers
has been that registrations have been declining in response to marketing campaigns and various other
subscriber acquisition methods; continuing decreases in new registrations could adversely allect the rate of
decline in the total number of subscribers. As part of its strategy announced in late 2004, America Online is
planning over the course of the coming year to move certain proprietary content to the Internet, allowing all
Inlernet users, not just members of the AOL service, to access such content without charge. This strategy
could encourage subscribers to cancel their subscriptions at a faster rate than in the past. In addition, America
Online is seeking to enter into agreements with high-speed access distributors, such as cable companies and
telecommunications companics, to bundle and distribute the AOL service for a [ee. Under these arrange-
ments, including an agreement signed recently with Time Warner Cable, America Online anticipates that it
will charge less, and accordingly earn less revenue, for the service than il it were selling directly to subscribers.
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America Online continues to develop, test, change and implement price plans, service offerings and payment
methods to identily effective ways to attract and retain members.

America Online will need to develop other sources of revenues to offset the lower revenues from service
fees expected o result from the decline in subscribers and from the offering of the lower-priced Internet
services to compete against other narrowband ISPs. For the foreseeable future, Advertising revenues will be an
increasingly important source of revenues for America Online. America Online's ability to increase Adverlis-
ing revenues depends in part on its ability to increase the value of its audience of unique visitors to the
America Online network of sites, content and services, as well as its ability to maintain or increase its audience
size. This audience includes AOL members as well as Internet users accessing America Online's network of
sites, content and services from the Internet either in the U.S. or from another country. Although America
Online has had some success in attracting an audience outside of its ISP membership at Internet Websites
like MapQuest and Moviefone, America Online faces signilicant competition {from third-party Internet sites,
such as Yahoo! Tt is unknown whether America Online's strategy of increasing content available on the Web
will be successful in generaling increased activity by its audience or in maintaining or increasing its audience
size, and thus increase Advertising revenues. In addition, America Online must continue to focus on
establishing, expanding and renewing relationships with advertisers and improving its advertising business.
America Online’s Advertising revenues have improved as a result, in part, of America Online’s paid-search
relationship with Google and its acquisition of Advertising.com. Increased competition to provide Internet
advertising opportunities could adversely impact Advertising.com’s continued growth. In addition, America
Online seeks 1o expand sources of Advertising revenue through introduction or expansion of Web-based
services, such as In-Store.com and the proposed re-launch of the AQL.com Website as a portal in 2005. It is
too early to determine if these Web-based services will be successful.

America Online has made progress in developing alternative sources of revenue and reducing costs,
although it needs to continue to do so. For example, while AOL Europe’s profitability increased in 2004, the
European services are not the leading Internet service providers in France, Germany or the U.K. Competition
includes telecommunications companies that may have greater resources and infrastructure. AOL’s continued
growth will depend in part on AOL Europe’s increasing its profitability over the ncxt year. In addition, while
network service costs were cut substantially in 2004, [urther decreases in 2005 are expected, but in a smaller
amount than in 2004. Decreases in network service costs in 2005 are expected to result from previously
negotiated price decreases, as well as from continuing decreases in demand based on the decline in the number
of subscribers to the AOL service who access the service via dial-up telephone. America Online’s strategy
includes continuing to introduce and expand use ol existing premium digital services that provide incremental
revenues, such as AOL PassCode, AOL Voicemail and MusicNet on AOL.

Developing and intreducing digital services requires America Online Lo operate outside of its core area of
expertise. Furthermore, revenues from digital premium services may be adversely affected by a reduction in
prices for the services or {roim incorporating them into the standard AOL service offering rather than offering
them separately as premium services, resulting from pressure from competitors who may offer similar services
over time at lower prices or at no additional charge as part of their standard offerings.

The Company’s Cable segment has begun providing its Digital Phone service over its cable systems and

Jaces risks inherent to entering a new line of business, from competition and from regulatory actions or

requirements. Coordinating the introduction of a product with which it has only limited operating experience
may present significant challenges. First, although Time Warner Cable has introduced Digital Phone service
in all its divisions as of December 31, 2004, it remains a relatively new technology. Furthermore, the Digital
Phone service depends upon interconnection and related services provided by certain third parties. Time
Warner Cable may encounter unforeseen difficulties as it introduces the product in new operating areas or
increases the scale of its offering in areas in which it has launched. Second, Time Warner Cable may face
heightened customer expectations and regulatory requirements related to the reliability of voice services as
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compared with video and high-speed data services. Time Wamer Cable will need to undertake sigaificant
training ol customer service represenfatives and technicians. If the service is not sufliciently reliable or Time
Warner Cable otherwise fails to meet customer expectations or regulatory requirements, the Digital Phone
business could be impacted adversely. Third, the competitive landscape for voice services is expected to be
intense, with Time Warner Cable facing competition from other providers of VoIP services, as well as regional
incumbent telephone companies, cellular telephone service providers, established long distance companies and
others. The regional incumbent telephone companies have substantial capital and other resources, as well as
longstanding customer relationships. Some of these companies have entered into co-marketing arrangements
with direct-to-home satellite service providers to offer video services (and, in the future, will likely offer video
services on their own), together with their telephone (including wireless) and DSL offerings. Such bundled
offerings by telephone companies may compete with Time Warner Cable's offerings and could adversely
impact Time Warner Cable. Finally, the Company expects advances in communications technology, as well as
changes in the marketplace and the regulatory and legislative environment. Consequently, the Company is
unable to predict the effect that ongoing or future developments in these areas might have on the Cable
segment’s voice business and operations.

The voice services business may also present additional regulatory risks. It is unclear whether and to what
extent traditional state and federal telephone regulations will apply to telephony services provided using VoIP
technology. Tn addition, regulators could allow ulility pole owners to charge cable operators oflering voice
services higher rates for pole rental than is allowed for cable and high-speed services. The FCC recently
initiated a rulemaking proceeding examining the proper regulatory approach to voice services ulilizing VoIP
technology. Congress is considering enacting new laws to govern those services. Additionally, there are court
cases addressing the proper regulatory treatment (or the service, and there are rulemakings and various other
proceedings underway at the state level. In view of these various activities at the state and lederal level, the
Company cannot be certain what impact regulation will have on the Digital Phone business.

Pending sharcholder litigation or failure to fulfill the obligations under the deferved prosecution
agreement with the U.S. Department of Justice could adversely affect Time Warner's operations. In connection
with the resolution of the investigation by the DOJ of the Company, America Online entered into a deferred
prosecution agreement with the DOJ. In accordance with the agreement, the DOJ filed a criminal complaint
against America Online in December 2004 for the conduct of cerlain employees in connection with securities
fraud by PurchasePro.com, but the DOJ will defer prosecution of AOL and will dismiss the complaint in
December 2006 provided the Company fulfills its obligations under the deferred prosecution agreement. For a
discussion of these obligations, see “Legal Proceedings — Update on Status of Government Investigations.” 1f
the Company does not satisfy its obligations, the DOJ can proceed with the prosecution of America Online for
actions in connection with PurchasePro.com, as set forth in the complaint, and may consider additional actions
against the Company, which could have significant adverse effects on its operations and financial result. The
Company intends to satisfy its obligations under the deferred prosecution agreement. As of March 1, 2005,
there were forty-one putative class action and shareholder derivative lawsuits alleging violations of federal and
state securities laws as well as purported breaches of fiduciary duties pending against Time Warner, certain of
its current and former executives, past and present members of its Board of Directors and, in certain instances,
America Online. There is also a consolidated action making allegations of ERISA violations. The complaints
purport to be made on behalf of certain of the Company's shareholders and allege, among other things, that
Time Warner violated various provisions of the securities laws. There are also actions filed by individual
shareholders pending in federal and state courts. The Company is unable to predict the outcome of the
pending shareholder litigation. The Company has not established any reserves associated with shareholder and
civil litigation due to their preliminary status and because it is unable to reasonably estimale a range of
possible loss. The Company is incurring expenses as a result of the pending shareholder litigation, and any
costs associated with judgments in or settlements of these matters could adversely affect its financial condition
and results of operations. See “Legal Proceedings — Securities Matters.”

127



TIME WARNER INC.
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION — (Continued)

Technological developments may adversely affect the Company’s competitive position and limit its ability
to protect its valuable intellectual property rights. Time Warner's businesses operate in the highly competitive,
consumer-driven and rapidly changing media and entertainment industries. Thcse businesses, as well as the
industries generally, are to a large extent dependent on the ability to acquire, develop, adopt, and exploit new
technologies to distinguish their products and services from those of their competitors. In addition, the
Company may face legal and practical limitations on its ability to enforce the Company’s intellectual property
rights as a result of technological developments that facilitate the theft and unlawful distribution of the
Company’s copyrighted works in digital form, including via the Internet. For example:

» The Company’s cable business may be adversely affected by more aggressive than expected competi-
tion from alternate technologies, such as satellite, DSL, traditional phone, and wireless and power-line
services; by the failure to choose technologies appropriately; by the failure of new equipment, such as
digital set-top boxes or digital video recorders, or by the ability of new services, such as digital cable,
high-speed data services, Digital Phone and Video-On-Demand, to appeal to enough consumers, to be
available at prices consumers are willing to pay, to function as expected or to be delivered in a timely
fashion;

« The Company's America Online business may be adversely affected by competitors’ abilities to
develop new technologies more quickly, including more compelling features/functionalities and
premium digital services for Internet users, and by the uncertainty of the costs for obtaining rights from
third parties, including appropriate patent licenses for technologies and methods used to deliver new
services; and

+ The Company’s filmed entertainment and television network businesses may be adversely aflfected by
the fragmentation of consumer leisure and entertainment time caused by a greater number of choices
resulting from technological developments, the impact of digital video recorders or other technologies
that change the nature of the advertising and other markets for television products.

Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The SEC encourages companies to disclose forward-looking information so that investors can better
understand a company’s future prospects and make informed investment decisions. This document contains
“forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
particularly statements anticipating future growth in revenues, Operating Income before Depreciation and
Amortization and cash flow. Words such as “anticipates,” *‘estimates,” “expects,” ‘“‘projects,” “‘intends,”
“plans,” “believes” and words and terms of similar substance used in connection with any discussion of future
operating or financial performance identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are
based on management’s present expectations and beliefs about future events. As with any projection or
forecast, they are inherently susceptible to uncertainty and changes in circumstances, and the Company is
under no obligation to, and expressly disclaims any obligation to, update or alter its forward-looking statements
whether as a result of such changes, new information, subsequent events or otherwise.

LI LRI

Additionally, Time Warner operates in highly competitive, consumer-driven and rapidly changing media,
entertainment and Internet businesses. These businesses are affected by government regulation, economic,
strategic, political and social conditions, consumer response to new and existing products and services,
technological developments and, particularly in view of new technologies, the continued ability to protect
intellectual property rights. Time Warner’s actual results could differ materially from management’s
expectations because of changes in such factors. Other factors and risks could adversely affect the operations,
business or financial results of Time Warner or its business segments in the future and could also cause actual
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results to differ materiaily from those contained in the forward-looking statements, including those identitied
in Time Warner's other filings with the SEC, and the following lactors and risks:

For Time Warner's AOL business:

the ability to successfully implement its business strategy;

the ability to develop and introduce new products and services to remain competitive;
the ability to differentiate its products and services from its competitors;

the ability to develop, adopt or have access to new technologies:

the ability to have access to distribution channels controlled by third parties;

the ability to manage its subscriber base profitably:

the ability to provide adequate server, network and system capacity:

the risk of business interruption caused by computer viruses. worms or other malicious aclivity, weather
events, natural disasters, terrorist attacks, third-party supplier failures, or unforeseen events;

the risk of unanticipated increased costs for network services;

the ability to maintain, and the cost of maintaining, the privacy and security of company and customer
information;

increased competition {from providers of Internet services, including providers of broadband access:

the ability to generate increased usage of sites and services that are part of the America Online
network, and the ability to maintain or expand the audience for its sites, content and services;

the ability to attract additional traditional advertisers to the online advertising medium;
the ability to maintain or renew existing advertising or marketing commitments:

the risk that the online advertising industry will not continue to grow, and that even if the industry
continues to grow, the risk that America Online will not successfully compete in securing advertising
refationships;

the ability to maintain or enter into new electronic commerce, marketing or content arrangements;
risks associated with state, local or federal taxation of online services and Internet access providers;
risks associated with foreign currency exchange rates;

the risks from changes in U.S. and international regulatory environments affecting interactive
services: and

the ability to reduce losses at the international businesses that are still unprofitable.

For Time Warner’s cable business:

more aggressive than expected competition, including price competition, {rom other distributors of
video programming, including direct to home satellite distributors, regional incumbent telephone
companies and from competitors using new technologies:

more aggressive than expected competition. including price competition, from other distributors of
high-speed data services, including DSL, satellite and terrestrial wireless distributors, power companics
and from compeltitors using new technologies;
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+ more aggressive than expected competition, including price competition, from other distributors of
voice services, including regional telephone companies, long distance providers, national VolP
providers, wireless distributors and from competitors using new technologies;

« greater than expected increases in programming or other costs, including costs of new products and
services, or difficulty in passing such costs to subscribers;

» increases in government regulation of video services, including regulation that limits cable operators’
ability to raise rates, that requires that particular programming be carried or offered in a particular
manner (for instance, *“a la carte”), or that dictates set-top box or other equipment [eatures,
functionalities or specifications;

» government regulation of other services, such as high-speed data and voice services, including
regulation that results in the imposition of higher pole fees for such services;

» government regulation that dictates the manner in which it operates its cable systems or determines
what 1o offer, such as the imposition of “‘forced access” rules or common carrier requirements:

+ increased difliculty in obtaining (ranchise renewals;

+ the failure of new equipment, such as digital set-top hoxes or digital videco recorders, or services, such
as digital video service, high-speed data service, voice service or video-on-demund, to appeal to enough
subscribers or to be available at prices subscribers are willing 1o pay. to function as expected and to be
delivered in a timely {ashion;

+ fluctuations in spending levels by advertisers and consumers;

» changes in technology and [lailure to anticipate technological developments or to choose technologies
appropriately; and

+ unanticipated [unding obligations relating to its cable joint ventures.

For Time Warner's filmed entertainment businesses:

» the ability to continue to attract and select desirable talent and scripts at manageable costs:
e general increases in production costs;

» fragmentation of consumer leisure and entertainment time and its possible negative effects on the
broadcast and cable networks, which are significant customers of the filmed entertainment businesses;

» continued popularity of merchandising:

» the uncertain impact of technological developments that facilitate theft and unlawful distribution of the
Company's copyrighted works and by legal and practical Hmitations on the ability to enforce the
Comipany’s intellectual property rights;

s the ability to develop and apply adequate protections for filmed entertainment content in a digital
delivery environment:

» the ability to develop successful business models for the secure delivery of filmed entertainment
products in a digital environment;

» risks associated with foreign currency exchange rates;

+ with respect to feature films, the increasing marketing costs associated with theatrical film releases in a
highly competitive marketplace;
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with respect to television programming, a decrease in demand for television programming provided by
non-afliliated producers and increased competition in viewership for broadcast programming due to the
increasing number of cable and pay television services;

with respect to home video, the threat of an impending format war over the next generation of high
definition DVD product might prevent a smooth transition from the current, highly profitable DVD
product 1o the next generation, thereby fragmenting and diminishing the potential market while
harming current DVD sales as the industry and consumers wait to see which format or formats will
prevail; and

the ability to maintain an ad supported commercial television model in the face of challenges posed by
increased consumer usage of digital video recorders or other technologies that change the nature of the
advertising and other markets for television products.

For Time Warner’s network businesses:

increased competition {rom large media companies whose increasing scale could result in competitive
advantages including advertising sales, promotions, programming and other areas;

greater than expected newsgathering, programming or production costs;
increased resistance by cable and satellite distributors to wholesale price increases:

the negative impact on premium programmers of greater than anticipated basic cable rate increases to
consumers;

increased regulation of distribution agreements;
the sensitivity of network advertising to economic cycles and to new media technologies;
the negative impact of further consolidation of multiple-system cable operators;

thelt and unlawful distribution of content by means of interception of cable and satellite transmissions
or Internet peer-to-peer [ile sharing;

the impact of digital video recorders or other technologies that change the nature of the advertising and
other markets for television products;

the development of new technologies that alter the role of programming networks and services: and

greater than expected {ragmentation of consumer viewership, as well as the possible loss of viewers, as
a result of the increased number of programming services and the increased popularity of alternatives
to television.

IFor Time Warner's publishing businesses:

declines in spending levels by advertisers and consumers;

the ability in a challenging environment (o continue to develop new profitable sources of circulution:
substantial postal rate increase expecled in 2006;

unanticipated increases in paper costs;

increased costs and business disruption resulting from instability in the newsstand distribution channel;

increased competition from new magazine entrants may have an impact on its most profitable
magazines, including People;

risks associated with foreign currency exchange rates;

131



TIME WARNER INC.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION — (Continued)

+ changes in government regulation of direct marketing;

o receipt of information identifying debit card purchasers which may require changes in payment
acceptance procedures for such purchasers, which could decrease subscription renewals; and

« the introduction and increased popularity over the long term of alternative technologies for the
distribution of news and information.

For Time Warner generally, achieving the Company’s financial objectives, including growth in operations,
maintaining financial ratios and a strong balance sheet, could be adversely affected by decreased liquidity in
the capital markets, including any reduction in the ability to access either the capital markets for debt
securities or bank financings, failure to meet earnings expectations, signilicant acquisitions or other transac-
tions, economic slowdowns, the impact of terrorist acts and hostilities in Trag and elsewhere in the world,
increased expenses as a result of the shareholder litigation pending against Time Warner, as well as the risk of
costs associated with judgments in or settlements of such matters, and changes in the Company’s plans,
strategies and intentions. Tn addition, fower than expectled valuations associated with the cash flows and
revenues at its segments may resull in its inability to realize the value of recorded intangibles and goodwill at
those segments.



TIME WARNER INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
December 31,

(millions)
2004 2003
(restated)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and equivalents .. ... . ... . it e e $ 6139 $ 3,040
Restricted cash. ... ... oo i e e 150 —
Receivables, less allowances of $2.109 and $2.079 billion....................... 5,512 4,908
| F IR 1 100 u (< A P 1,737 1,390
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ............. ... .. ...coiiiiiiiaa,, 1,101 1,255
Current assets of discontinued operations . ................ ... itvirernnanenn. — 1,675
Total CUITENT @SSEES . ..ot ittt e ittt it e ettt et 14,639 12,268
Noncurrent inventories and film Costs . .. ....o ittt e 4,415 4,465
Investments, including available-for-sale securities ............................ 4,703 3,770
Property, plant and equipment ............ .. .. i e 13,094 12,559
Intangible assets subject to amortization................ ... ittt 3,892 4,229
Intangible assels not subject to amortization ................. ... ... 39,656 39,656
GoodWIll o i e e e e e 39,667 39,459
O S8 .« ottt ittt e e e e e e 3,273 2,742
Noncurrent assets of discontinued operations . ............................. ... — 2,632
Total a85E1S . . .ttt e $123,339  $121,780
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable ... ... .. e $ 1494 §$ 1,629
Participations payable .............. . . i 2,579 1,955
Royalties and programming costs payable..................... ... ... .. 1,018 1,022
Deferred reVENUE . .. oottt e e e e e 1,497 1,731
Debt due within one year ......... .ottt i et 1,672 2,287
Other current Habilities . ... ... .o e e 6,313 6,097
Current liabilities of discontinued operations .......................c.oovi... 51 1,574
Total current labilities ......... ... .ot i i it et 14,624 16,295
Long-term debt ... i e 20,703 23,458
Deferred inCOmME 1aXeS . ... ..ottt ettt et e i e 14,943 12,655
Deferred TeVenUE ... ... it i e e e e e e 905 955
Mandatorily convertible preferred stock ........ ... il 1,500 1,500
Other liabilities. .. ... oot e e e 4,341 4,452
Noncurrent liabilities of discontinued operations .............. ... .....couei... 38 901
MINOTItY IETESIS . . . o oottt i e e e 5,514 5,351
Commitment and contingencies (Note 18)
Shareholders’ equity
Series LMCN-V common stock, $0.01 par value, 105.7 million shares and

171.2 million shares outstanding, respectively............................... 1 2
Time Warner common stock, $0.01 par value, 4.483 and 4.365 billion shares

OUtSIANAING . . .. .o e e 45 44
Paid-in-Capital . ... ..ot 156,252 155,579
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net ......................... 106 (415)
Accumulated deficit. . ... ... . i e (95,633)  (98,997)
Total shareholders’ equity . ............ o ot 60,771 56,213
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . ....... ... ... i ... $123,339  $121,780

See accompanying notes.

133



TIME WARNER INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATI
Years Ended December 31,
(millions, except per share amounts)

ONS

2003 2002

(restated) (restated)

$ 20,448 $ 18,959

6,180 6,045
11,446 10,216
1,489 1,840

39,563 37,060
(23,422)  (22,291)
(9,834) (8,794)

(640) (557)

(1(;) (35)

(318)  (42,511)
14 6

5254  (37,414)
(1,734)  (1,624)
1,210 (2,341)
(214) (278)

4,516 (41,657)
(1,370) (313)

3,146 (41,970)
(495)  (1,012)

2,651  (42,982)
(12)  (54,235)

$ 2,639 $(97,217)

$ 070 $ (9.42)
(0.11) (0.23)
— (12.17)

$ 059 § (21.82)

4,506.0 4,454.9

$ 068 $ (9.42)
(0.11) (0.23)
— (12.17)

$ 057 $ (21.82)

4,623.7 4,454.9

2004

Revenues:

SUbSCHPHONS . . .o u ittt e e $ 21,605

Advertising. .. ...t e 6,955

L0 11771 1 12,350

1 117 1,179
Total revenues™ . ... ..o 42,089
Costs of revenues™ ... ... (24,449)
Selling, general and administrative™ ... ... ............ ... ... ... (10,300)
Amortization of intangible assets .............. .. ... .o oL (626)
Legal reserves related to the government investigations . . ............ (510)
Restructuring CostS ... ..o o ittt i e e (50)
Asset impairments .............. ... i i (10)
Gains on disposal of assets, net.............. ... .. ..l 21
Operating income (loss) .......... ... . i 6,165
Interest expense, net™ ... ... . (1,533)
Other income (EXPense), MEt. ... ...vtuneertn e eennenneennennn 521
Minority interest expense, net . ...t (246)
Income (loss) before income taxes, discontinued operations and

cumulative effect of accounting change ......................... 4,907
INCOME taX PrOVISION . ... . ...\ vttt e iiaiieennnnn (1,698)
Income (loss) before discontinued operations and cumulative effect of

accounting change. ......... ... .. i e 3,209
Discontinued operations, net of tax.............. ... ... ... ..... 121
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change ........ 3,330
Cumulative effect of accounting change, netof tax ................. 34
Net income (10SS) ...ttt et $ 3,364
Basic income (loss) per common share before discontinued operations

and cumulative effect of accounting change ..................... $ 070
Discontinued operations .. ..........o ittt i 0.03
Cumulative effect of accounting change........................... 0.01
Basic net income (loss) per common share........................ $§ 074
Average basic common shares. . .......... ... it i 4,560.2
Diluted income (loss) per common share before discontinued

operations and cumulative effect of accounting change ............ $ 068
Discontinued Operalions .. ...........c.iirriiiin e eenarnnnenn.. 0.03
Cumulative effect of accounting change........................... 0.01
Diluted net income (loss) per common share...................... $ 072
Average diluted common shares ............... .. o i il 4,694.7
@ Includes the following income (expenses) resulting from transactions with related companies:

REVEIIUES . .« o vttt ettt et ettt ettt et et e e e e e e e e e e e $ 221

COS1S OF FEVEIIUES - . . oo ittt ettt ettt et et e e e e e (254)

Selling, general and administrative .. ... L e 32

TNLEFESL INCOME, MEL. Lo o ittt et ettt et ettt e e et as 25

See accompanying notes.
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TIME WARNER INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,

(millions)
2004 2003 2002
(restated) (restated)

OPERATIONS
Net income (1055) @ .. . .t $ 3364 $2639 $(97.217)
Adjustments for noncash and nonoperating items:

Cumulative effect of accounting change, netof tax ................... (34) 12 54,235

Depreciation and amortization . .......... ... ... ittt 3,207 3,139 2,763

Amortization of film costs . ......... . o i i i 2,925 2,584 2,536

Asset IMpairments . ... ... oot i e 10 318 42,511

Loss on writedown of investments.................... ... ... 15 212 2,212

Gain on sale of investments, net ............. ... ... ..., (447) (810) (136)

Equity in losses of investee companies and cash distributions ........... 20 154 366
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:"”

Receivables. .. ... i e e e (853) (310) 139

INVENtOrIES ..ottt e e e (3,218)  (3,332) (2,478)

Accounts payable and other liabilities. .............................. 264 (120) 346

Other balance sheet changes ...........c.ccoiiieiiiiiieniiinneaas 1,363 1,270 (171)
Adjustments relating to discontinued operations ........................ 2 845 1,651
Cash provided by operations ..............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiian. 6,618 6,601 6,757
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments and acquisitions, net of cash acquired ...................... (877) (570) (7,394)
Investments and acquisitions from discontinued operations ............... —_ (52) (162)
Capital expenditures and product development costs from continuing

OPEIALIONS .« . o oo vttt et ettt et et e e e e (3,024) (2,761) (2,843)
Capital expenditures from discontinued operations ...................... — (126) (386)
Investment proceeds from available-for-sale securities ................... 532 1,079 187
Investment proceeds from discontinued operations ...................... — 1,056 —
Other investment proceeds . . ....... ... ettt 2,866 1,451 361
Cash provided (used) by investing activities ........................... {503) 77 (10,237)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BOrTOWINgS .« .\ et 1,631 2,492 23,535
Debt repayments ... ... ... ittt i e e (4,834) (7,230) (18,984)
Redemption of redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary.............. — (813) (255)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ................. ... ... .. ..... 353 372 297
Current period repurchases of common stock .......................... — — (102)
Dividends paid and partnership distributions of discontinued operations, net — — (1)
Principal payments on capital leases . .............. ... ... i (191) (178) (61)
(o) T S 25 (11) 20
Cash provided (used) by financing activities .. ......................... (3,016) (5,368) 4,439
INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS ........................ 3,099 1,310 959
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD .......... 3,040 1,730 771
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF PERIOD ................. $ 6,139 $3040 3 1,730

“ Includes net income (loss) from discontinued operations of $121 million in 2004, $(495) million in 2003 and ($1.012) billion in 2002.

2004 includes $300 million in noncash legal reserves related to the government investigations.

See accompanying notes.
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TIME WARNER INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(millions)

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2001 (restated) .............
Nt 0SS © ottt e e e
Foreign currency translation adjustments ......................
Unrealized gains on securities, net of $37 million tax provision!
Realized and unrealized losses on derivative financial instruments,
net of $10 million tax benefit........... ... ... ... ... ... ....
Unfunded accumulated benefit obligation, net of $213 million
incometax benmefit............ ... ... i,
Comprehensive (10s8) ........... i,
Repurchases of Time Warner Stock .................... .. ..

Dilution of interest in Time Warner Entertainment Company,
L.P., net of $276 million income tax impact .................

Shares issued pursuant to stock options, restricted stock and
benefit plans, including $102 million income tax benefit .......
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2002 (restated) .............
Netincome . ... ... i
Foreign currency translation adjustments . .....................
Unrealized loss on securities, net of $34 million tax benefit®™ . ...

Realized and unrealized losses on derivative financial instruments,
net of $9 million tax benefit................. ... ... .. ...

Reversal of unfunded accumulated benefit obligation, net of

$180 million income tax provision..........................
Comprehensive INCOME . . ..ottt e eeennn.
Shares issued pursuant to stock options, restricted stock and

benefit plans, including $23 million income tax benefit ........
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 (restated) .............
NEtINCOME ..\ttt ittt i e s
Foreign currency translation adjustments . .....................
Unrealized gain on securities, net of $388 mitlion tax provision'®’

Realized and unrealized losses on derivative financial instruments,
net of $0.6 million tax provision ...........................

Reversal of unfunded accumulated benefit obligation, net of
$3 million income taX provision............................
Comprehensive income . . ... i
Shares issued pursuant to stock options, restricted stock and
benefit plans, including $244 million income tax benefit .......

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2004 ... ....................

Retained
Earnings
Common Paid-1n (Accumulated
Stock Capital Deficit) Total
$44 $155,172 $ (4,387) $150,829
— — (97,217) (97,217)
— — (300) (300)
— — 56 56
— — 21) 20
- — (319) (319)
— — (97,801) (97,801)
—_ (102) — (102)
— (414) — (414)
1 478 — 479
45 155,134 (102,188) 52,991
—_ — 2,639 2,639
— — (1) (M)
— — (50) (50)
- — (6) (6)
= — 270 270
— — 2,776 2,776
1 445 — 446
46 155,579 (99,412) 56,213
— — 3,364 3,364
- — (66) (66)
—_— — 582 582
—_ — 1 |
= = 4 4
— — 3,885 3,885
- 673 — 673
$46 $156,252 $ (95,527) $ 60,771

™) Includes a $34 million pretax reduction (lax effect of $14 million) related to realized gains on the sale of securities in 2002 and an increase of $738 million
prelax (tax effect of $295 million) related to impairment charges on investments that had experienced other-than-temporary declines. These charges are

included in the 2002 net loss.
0}

Includes a $218 million pretax reduction (1ax effect of $87 million) related to realized gains on the sale of securities in 2003 and an increase of $11 million

pretax (lax effect $4 million) related (o impairment charges on investments that had experienced other-than-temporary declines. These changes are

included in the 2003 nel income,

(c

Includes a $268 million pretax reduction (tax effect of $107 million) related to realized gains on the sale of securilies in 2004 and an increase of $4 million

pretax (tax effect $2 million) related to impairment charges on investments that had experienced other-than-temporary declines. These changes are

included in (he 2004 net income.

See accompanying notes.

136



TIME WARNER INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation
Description of Business

Time Warner Inc. (“Time Warner” or the “Company”) is a leading media and entertainment company,
whose businesses include interactive services, cable systems, filmed entertainment, television networks and
publishing. Time Warner classifies its business interests into five reportable segments: 4OL: consisting
principally of interactive services; Cable: consisting principally of interests in cable systems that provide video
programming, high-speed data and Digital Phone services; Filmed Entertainment: consisting principally of
feature film, television and home video production and distribution; Networks: consisting principally of cable
television and broadcast networks; and Publishing: consisting principally of magazine and book publishing.
Financial information for Time Warner’s various reportable segments is presented in Note 17.

Basis of Presentation
Update on Status of Government Investigations and Restatement of Financial Statements

As previously disclosed by the Company, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and the
U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) have been conducting investigations into the accounting and disclosure
practices of the Company. Those investigations focused on transactions principally involving the Company’s
America Online segment that were entered into after July 1, 1999, including advertising arrangements, the
methods used by the America Online segment to report its subscriber numbers and the accounting related to
the Company’s interest in AOL Europe prior to January 2002.

As announced on December 15, 2004, the Company and its subsidiary, AOL, have reached a definitive
agreement with the DOJ that resolves the DOJ’s investigation of the Company. The Company also announced
that it has proposed a settlement to the staff of the SEC that the staff has agreed to recommend to the SEC
Commissioners.

Under the terms of the settlement in connection with the DOJ investigation, the DOJ filed a criminal
complaint against AOL for the conduct of certain employees in connection with securities fraud by
PurchasePro.com, but the DOJ will defer prosecution of AOL. After two years, provided the Company fulfills
its obligations under the agreement, the DOJ will dismiss the criminal complaint filed against AOL. In
addition, the DOJ will not prosecute the Company or AOL for conduct relating to certain other transactions
entered into by AOL or the Company from July 1, 1999, including transactions that were the subject of the
DOJ or SEC investigations.

In connection with the settlement with the DOJ, in December 2004, the Company paid a penalty of
$60 million and established a $150 million fund, which the Company may use to settle related securities
litigation. The fund is reflected as restricted cash on the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheet
as of December 31, 2004. The Company’s other obligations under the settlement agreement are to (a) accept
responsibility for the conduct of certain AOL employees with respect to PurchasePro.com transactions;
(b) cooperate fully with the DOJ or any other federal criminal law enforcement agency regarding the
transactions covered by the settlement; and (c) retain and cooperate with an independent monitor, who will
review the effectiveness of AOL’s internal controls, including those related to the accounting for advertising
and related transactions.

Under the settlement the SEC staff will recommend to the SEC Commissioners, Time Warner will
agree, without admitting or denying the Commission’s allegations, to be enjoined from future violations of
certain provisions of the securities laws. Under the proposed settlement:

» The Company would pay a $300 million penalty, which the SEC staff will request be used for a Fair
Fund, as authorized under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;
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» The Company would adjust its historical accounting for Advertising revenues in certain transactions
with Bertelsmann, A.G. (“Bertelsmann”) that were improperly recognized or prematurely recognized
primarily in the second half of 2000, during 2001 and during 2002. Additionally, the Company would
adjust its accounting for transactions involving three other AOL customers where there were
Advertising revenues recognized in the second half of 2000 and during 2001;

+ Consistent with its previous announcement, the Company would adjust its historical accounting for its
investment in and consolidation of AOL Europe S.A. (“AOL Europe”); and

» The Company would also agree to the appointment of an independent examiner, who will either be or
hire a certified public accountant. The independent examiner would review whether the Company’s
historical accounting for transactions with 17 counterparties identified by the SEC staff, including
three cable programming affiliation agreements with related advertising elements, was in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles, and provide a report to the Company’s audit and finance
committee of its conclusions within 180 days of being engaged. The transactions that would be
reviewed were entered into between June 1, 2000 and December 31, 2001, including subsequent
amendments thereto, and involved online advertising and related transactions for which revenue was
principally recognized before January 1, 2002.

Final settlement is subject to both agreement on final documentation and approval by the SEC
Commissioners. The Company will not be able to deduct the $300 million penalty to be paid under the
proposed settlement for income tax purposes, be reimbursed or indemnified for such payment through
insurance or any other source, or use such payment to setoff or reduce any award of compensatory damages to
plaintiffs in related securities litigation pending against the Company.

In connection with the proposed settlement with the SEC, the financial results for each of the years
ended December 31, 2000 through December 31, 2003 have been restated for the following:

» To adjust the accounting for transactions with certain counterparties resulting in the recognition of
Advertising revenues of approximately $489 million in the aggregate, including the previously disclosed
$400 miltion with Bertelsmann that the Company has reflected as a reduction in the purchase price of
AOL Europe in 2002 rather than as Advertising revenues during 2001 and 2002.

*» To adjust the accounting for $20 million of Advertising revenues that were recognized in 2001, but
should have been recognized in 2002.

+ To adjust the accounting for the Company’s investment in AOL Europe to reflect the consolidation of
AOL Europe in 2000. Previously, the Company began consolidating AOL Europe’s operations in
January 2002.

The accompanying financial information reflects the impact of the adjustments that were made in the
restatement of the Company’s consolidated financial statements. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the
results of operations reflect a reduction in the Company’s consolidated revenues, Operating Loss, and Net
Loss of approximately $254 million, $1.274 billion and $1.479 billion, respectively. Therc is a positive impact
on the Operating Loss and Net Loss in 2002 due to a lower goodwill impairment charge at the AOL segment
than originally reported. Specifically, the incremental losses assumed by AOL related to the consolidation of
AOL Europe beginning in 2000 and the treatment of consideration rcceived on certain other transactions as a
reduction of the purchase price of AOL Europe as opposed (o advertising revenue reduced the goodwill
recognized in connection with the Company’s purchase of Bertelsmann's interest in AOL Europe in January
2002. There is a corresponding reduction in the impairment charge recognized thereon in the fourth quarter of
2002. For the year ended December 31, 2003, the results of operations reflect a reduction in the Company’s
consolidated revenues and Operating Income of approximately $2 million and $1 million, respectively. The
impact on the consolidated Net Income was less than $1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. There
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was no impact on the previously reported results of operations for the first three quarters of the year ended
December 31, 2004.

For the AOL Segment, for the year ended December 31, 2002, the results of operations reflect a
reduction in AOL’s revenues and Operating Loss of approximately $234 million and $1.274 billion,
respectively. The remaining impact on the Company’s consolidated revenues represents a reduction in
consolidated revenues from certain transactions whereby the advertising was delivered by another Time
Warner segment. For the year ended December 31, 2003, the results of operations reflect a reduction in AOL's
revenues and Operating Income of approximately $2 million and $1 million, respectively. There was no impact
on the previously reported results of operations for the first three quarters of the year ended December 31,
2004.

As previously addressed, as part of the proposed settlement with the SEC, the Company has agreed to
appoint an independent examiner, who — within 180 days after starting work — will review whether the
Company’s historical accounting for transactions with a limited number of specified counterparties, principally
involving online advertising revenues, was in accordance with GAAP. Depending on the examiner’s
conclusions, a further restatement might be necessary. It is also possible that, so long as there are unresolved
issues associated with the Company’s financial statements, the effectiveness of any registration statement of
the Company or its affiliates may be delayed.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include 100% of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash
flows of Time Warner and all entities in which Time Warner has a controlling voting interest (“subsidiaries”)
and variable interest entities (“VIE”) required to be consolidated in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Intercompany accounts and transactions between consolidated companies have been
climinated in consolidation.

The financial position and operating results of substantially all foreign operations are consolidated using
the local currency as the functional currency. Local currency assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of
exchange on the balance sheet date, and local currency revenues and expenses are translated at average rates
of exchange during the period. Resulting translation gains or losses are included in the accompanying
consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss), net.

The effects of any changes in the Company’s ownership interests resulting from the issuance of equity
capital by consolidated subsidiaries or equity investees to unaffiliated parties are accounted for as capital
transactions pursuant to the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 51, “Accounting for Sales of Stock by a
Subsidiary.”

Discontinued Operations

As discussed in Note 4, on March 1, 2004, the Company completed the sale of the Warner Music
Group’s (“WMG”) recorded music and music publishing operations to a private investment group for
approximately $2.6 billion in cash and an option to re-acquire a minority interest in the operations sold. In
addition, on October 24, 2003, the Company completed the sale of WMG’s CD and DVD manufacturing,
printing, packaging and physical distribution operations to Cinram International, Inc. for approximately
$1.05 billion in cash. With the completion of these transactions, the Company disposed of its entire Music
segment. Accordingly, the Company has presented the financial condition and results of operations of the
Music segment as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

As discussed in Note 6, beginning in the third quarter of 2002, the Company’s results of operations have
been adjusted to reflect the results of certain cable television systems held in the TWE-Advance/Newhouse
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Partnership (“TWE-A/N™) as discontinued operations for all periods presented herein. In addition, unless
specifically noted, amounts disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are for continuing

operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and footnotes thereto. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Significant estimates inherent in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements
include accounting for asset impairments, allowances for doubtful accounts, film ultimates, video and
magazine returns, business combinations, pensions and other postretirement benefits, income taxes and
contingencies.

Recently Issued Accounting Guidance
Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Statement 123
(Revised), “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS 123R”). FAS 123R requires all companies to measure compen-
sation costs for all share-based payments (including employee stock options) at fair value and recognize such
costs in the statement of operations. FAS 123R is effective for public companies for periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. The Company will continue to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value
method set forth in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (*APB 25”) until adoption of FAS 123R on July 1, 2005. In accordance with APB 25 and
related interpretations, compensation expense for stock options is generally recognized in income based on the
excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock at the grant date of the award or other measurement
date over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. The compensation costs related to stock
options recognized by the Company pursuant to APB 25 were minimal. As a result, the application of the
provisions of FAS 123R will have a significant impact to reported net income and earnings per share. See
“Stock-Based Compensation” for the pro forma impact if compensation costs for the Company’s stock option
plans had been determined based on the fair value method set forth in FAS 123.

Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — an
amendment of APB Opinion No. 29” (“FAS 153”). FAS 153 eliminates the exception to account for
nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets at carrying value and replaces it with a general exception
for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance; otherwise, the exchange
principal of fair value applies. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of
the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. FAS 153 is effective for
nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The provisions of
FAS 153 are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Inventory Costs

In November 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement 151, “Inventory Costs” (“FAS 1517). FAS 151
amends the guidance in Accounting Research Bulletin 43, “Inventory Pricing” (“ARB 43”) and requires
abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight handling costs and wasted material (spoilage) to be
recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of ‘“‘so abnormal” as
previously defined in ARB 43. Furthermore, FAS 151 requires that the allocation of fixed production
overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. FAS 151 is
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effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The provisions of
FAS 151 will not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Use of Residual Method in Fair Yalue Determinations

In September 2004, the Emerging Issue Task Force (“EITF”) issued Topic No. D-108, “Use of the
Residual Method to Value Acquired Assets Other than Goodwill” (*Topic D-108""). Topic D-108 requires
the direct value method, rather than the residual value method, be used to value intangible assets other than
goodwill for such assets acquired in business combinations completed after September 29, 2004. Under the
residual value method, the fair value of the intangible asset is determined to be the difference between the
enterprise value and the fair value of all other separately identifiable assets; whereas, under the direct value
method all intangible assets are valued separately and directly. Topic D-108 also requires that registrants who
have applied the residual method to the valuation of intangible assets for purposes of impairment testing shall
perform an impairment test using the direct value method on all intangible assets. Previously, the Company
had used a residual value methodology to value cable franchise and sports franchise intangible assets. Pursuant
to the provisions of Topic D-108, the Company utilized a traditional discounted cash flow methodology to
value cable franchise intangibles for its December 2004 impairment test. Market and income-based
methodologies were used to value sports franchises. The provisions of Topic D-108 did not affect the
consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

Pursuant to the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities —
an Interpretation of ARB No. 51, (as revised, “FIN 46R"), the Company began consolidating the operations
of America Online Latin America, Inc. (“AOLA™) as of March 31, 2004. AOLA is a publicly traded entity
whose significant shareholders include the Company, AOL, the Cisneros Group (a private investment
company) and Banco Itau (a leading Brazilian bank). AOLA provides online services principally to customers
in Brazil, Mexico, Puerto Rico and Argentina. The Company has no obligation to provide additional funding
for AOLA’s operations, and the creditors of AOLA have no recourse to the Company.

In accordance with the transition provisions of FIN 46R, the assets and liabilities of AOLA were
recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2004, in the amounts at which they
would have been carried if FIN 46R had been effective when the Company first met the conditions to be
considered the primary beneficiary of AOLA. Upon consolidating the balance sheet of AOLA, the Company
recorded incremental assets of approximately $85 million and liabilities of $29 million, with the difference of
$56 million recognized as the pretax cumulative effect of an accounting change ($34 million on an after-tax
basis). Prior periods have not been restated. The Company consolidated the operating results of AOLA’s
operations commencing April 1, 2004. In order to provide the time necessary to consolidate and evaluate the
AOLA financial information, the AOLA financial statements are consolidated by the Company on a one-
quarter time lag. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company recognized revenues of $40 million and
an Operating Loss of $20 million associated with AOLA.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had onc entity deemed to be a VIE for which the Company is not
considered the primary beneficiary. At December 31, 2004, this entity had total assets of $29 million and total
liabilities of $44 million. In addition in 2004 it had total revenucs of $176 million and a net loss of
$123 million.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of commercial paper and other investments that are readily convertible into cash
and have original maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates
fair value.

Restricted Cash

As part of the Company’s proposed settlement with the DOJ, the Company established a $150 million
fund that the Company may use only to settle any related shareholder or securities litigation. This amount is
reflected as Restricted cash in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Investments

Investments in companies in which Time Warner has significant influence, but less than a controlling
voting interest, are accounted for using the equity method. This is generally presumed to exist when Time
Warner owns between 20% and 50% of the investee. However, in certain circumstances, Time Warner’s
ownership percentage exceeds 50% but the Company accounts for the investment using the equity method
because the minority shareholders hold certain rights that allow them to participate in the day-to-day
operations of the business.

Under the equity method, only Time Warner’s investment in and amounts due to and from the equity
investee are included in the consolidated balance sheet; only Time Warner’s share of the investee’s earnings
(losses) is included in the consolidated operating results; and only the dividends, cash distributions, loans or
other cash received from the investee, additional cash investments, loan repayments or other cash paid to the
investee are included in the consolidated cash flows. In circumstances in which the Company’s ownership in
an investee is in the form of a preferred security or otherwise senior security, Time Warner’s share in the
investee’s income or loss is determined by applying the equity method of accounting using the “hypothetical-
liquidation-at-book-value” method. Under the hypothetical-liquidation-at-book-value method, the investor’s
share of earnings or losses is determined based on changes in the investor’s claim in the book value of the
investee. Additionally, the carrying value of investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting
is adjusted downward to reflect any other-than-temporary declines in value (see “Asset Impairments” below).

Investments in companies in which Time Warner does not have a controlling interest or is unable to exert
significant influence are accounted for at market value if the investments are publicly traded and any resale
restrictions are less than one year (“available-for-sale investments”). If there are resale restrictions greater
than one year or if the investment is not publicly traded then the investment is accounted for at cost.
Unrealized gains and losses on investments accounted for at market value are reported, net-of-tax, in the
accompanying consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity as a component of Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net until the investment is sold or considered impaired (see ““Asset Impair-
ments” below), at which time the realized gain or loss is included in income. Dividends and other distributions
of earnings from both at-market-value investments and investments accounted for at cost are included in
income when declared.

Accounts Receivable Securitization Facilities

Time Warner has certain accounts receivable securitization facilities that provide for the accelerated
receipt of cash on available accounts receivable. These securitization transactions are accounted for as sales in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities — a replacement of FASB Statement No. 125" (“FAS 140”), because the
Company has relinquished control of the receivables. For further information, see Note 10.
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Derivatives

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with FASB Statement No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“FAS 133”), FASB Statement No. 138,
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities — an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 1337 (“FAS 138”) and FASB Statement No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“FAS 149"). These pronouncements require that all
derivative instruments be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. In addition, these pronouncements
provide that for derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value will either
be offset against the change in fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitments through earnings
or recognized in shareholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) until
the hedged item is recognized in earnings, depending on whether the derivative is being used to hedge changes
in fair value or cash flows. The ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair value will be immediately
recognized in earnings. The Company uses derivative instruments principally to manage the risk associated
with movements in foreign currency exchange rates, the risk that changes in interest rates will affect the fair
value or cash flows of its debt obligations and equity price risk in the Company’s investment holdings. See
Note 16 for additional information regarding derivative instruments held by the Company and risk
management strategies.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of Time Warner’s financial instruments approximates fair value, except for differences
with respect to long-term, fixed-rate debt (Note 10) and certain differences relating to investments accounted
for at cost and other financial instruments that are not significant (Note 7). The fair value of financial
instruments is generally determined by reference to market values resulting from trading on a national
securities exchange or in an over-the-counter market. In cases where quoted market prices are not available,
fair value is based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Additions to property, plant and equipment generally
include material, labor and overhead. Depreciation, which includes amortization of capital leases, is provided
generally on the straight-line method over useful lives ranging up to 40 years for buildings and related
improvements and up to 16 years for furniture, fixtures and other equipment. For cable television plant
upgrades and cable converters and modems, depreciation is provided generally over useful lives of 3-16 and 3-
5 years, respectively. Property, plant and equipment, including capital leases, consists of:

December 31,
2004 2003
(millions)
Land and buildings .......... .. ... . . $ 3203 §$ 2,494
Cable television equipment ... .......... ... ..., 10,168 9,979
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment ............................... 6,696 5,622
20,067 18,095
Less accumulated depreciation.................... ... i, (6,973) (5,536)
otal o e e s $13,094  $12,559
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Capitalized Software Costs

Time Warner capitalizes certain costs incurred for the development of internal use software. These costs,
which include the costs associated with coding, software configuration, upgrades and enhancements, are
included in Other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

AOL’s subscription services are comprised of various features, which contribute to the overall functional-
ity of the services. AOL capitalizes costs incurred for the production of computer software that generates the
functionality within its products. Capitalized costs typically include direct labor and related overhead for
software produced by AOL, as well as the cost of software purchased from third parties. Costs incurred for a
product prior to the determination that the product is technologically feasible (research and development
costs), as well as maintenance costs of established products, are expensed as incurred. Once technological
feasibility has been established, such costs are capitalized until the software has completed testing and is
mass-marketed. Amortization is provided on a product-by-product basis using the greater of the straight-line
method or the current year revenue as a percentage of total revenue estimates for the related software product,
not to exceed five years, commencing the month after the date of the product release. Included in costs of
revenues are research and development costs totaling $134 million in 2004, $139 million in 2003 and
$136 million in 2002. The total net book value of capitalized software costs was $237 million and $295 million
as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively. Amortization of capitalized software costs was
$210 million in 2004, $194 million in 2003 and $196 million in 2002.

Intangible Assets

As a creator and distributor of branded information and copyrighted entertainment products, Time
Warner has a significant number of intangible assets, including cable television and sports franchises, film and
television libraries and other copyrighted products, trademarks and customer subscriber lists. In accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, Time Warner does not recognize the fair value of
internally generated intangible assets. Costs incurred to create and produce copyrighted product, such as
feature films and television series, generally are either expensed as incurred or capitalized as tangible assets, as
in the case of cash advances and inventoriable product costs. However, accounting recognition is not given to
any increase in asset value that may be associated with the collection of the underlying copyrighted material.
Additionally, costs incurred to create or extend brands, such as magazine titles and new television networks,
generally result in losses over an extended development period and are recognized as a reduction of income as
incurred, while any corresponding brand value created is not recognized as an intangible asset in the
consolidated balance sheet. However, intangible assets acquired in business combinations accounted for under
the purchase method of accounting are recorded at fair value on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

In January 2002, the Company adopted FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Asscts” (“FAS 1427), which required that goodwill, including goodwill
included in the carrying value of investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
indefinite-lived other intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite useful life, cease amortizing. The new
rules also required that goodwill of consolidated businesses and certain intangible assets be assessed for
impairment using fair value measurement techniques. As a resull, a substantial portion of the Company’s
goodwill and intangible assets, including cable television franchises, sports franchises and brands and
trademarks, ceased amortizing.

Asset Impairments

Investments

The Company’s investments consist of fair-value investments, including available-for-sale investments,
investments accounted for using the cost method of accounting and investments accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. The Company regularly reviews its investment securities for impairment based on
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criteria that include the extent to which carrying value exceeds its related market value, the financial condition
of the investee, and the intent and ability to retain the investment for a sufficient period of time to allow for
recovery in the market value of the investments. For more information, see Note 7.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Determining the extent of an impairment, if any,
typically requires various estimates and assumptions including cash flows directly attributable to the asset, the
useful life of the asset and residual value, if any. When necessary, we use internal cash flow estimates, quoted
market prices and appraisals as appropriate to determine fair value.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets, primarily certain franchise assets, trademarks and
brand names, are tested annually as of December 31 and whenever events or circumstances make it more
likely than not that an impairment may have occurred, such as a significant adverse change in the business
climate or a decision to sell or dispose of the unit. Estimating fair value is performed by utilizing various
valuation techniques, with the primary technique being a discounted cash flow. The use of a discounted cash
flow model often involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions. For more information, see Note 2.

Accounting for Pension Plans

Time Warner and certain of its subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans covering a majority of
domestic employees and, to a lesser extent, international employees. Pension benefits are based on formulas
that reflect the employees’ years of service and compensation during their employment period and participa-
tion in the plans. The pension expense recognized by the Company is determined using certain assumptions,
including the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, the discount rate used to determine the present
value of future pension benefits and the rate of compensation increases. The determination of these
assumptions is discussed in more detail in Note 15.

Revenues and Costs
AOL

Subscription revenues are recognized over the period that services are provided. Advertising, Content and
Other revenues are recognized as the services are performed or when the goods are delivered. AOL generates
Advertising revenues by directly selling advertising or through transaction-based arrangements. Advertising
revenue related to advertising sold by AOL is generally categorized into two types of contracts: standard and
nonstandard. The revenues derived from standard advertising contracts, in which AOL provides a minimum
number of impressions for a fixed fee, are recognized as the impressions are delivered. The revenues derived
from nonstandard advertising contracts, which provide carriage, advisory services, premier placements and
exclusivities, navigation benefits, brand affiliation and other benefits, are recognized, on a straight-line basis,
over the term of the contract, provided that AOL is meeting its obligations under the contract (e.g., delivery of
impressions). In cases where refund arrangements exist, upon the expiration of the condition related to the
refund, revenue directly related to the refundable fee is recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining
term of the agreement. Transaction-based arrangements generally involve either arrangements in which AOL
performs advertising and promotion through prominent display of a partner’s content on one of AOL'’s
services, or arrangements in which AOL’s Advertising.com, Inc. (*‘Advertising.com”) subsidiary performs
advertising on a third-party website. As compensation for display of a partner’s content, AOL is paid a share of
the partner’s advertising revenues. For performance-based advertising, AOL is paid an agreed to fee based on
customer specified results, such as registrations or sales leads. Advertising revenue related to these
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transaction-based arrangements is recognized when the amount is determinable (i.e., generally when
performance reporting is received from the partner). Deferred revenue consists primarily of prepaid electronic
commerce and advertising fees and monthly and annual prepaid subscription fees billed in advance.

For promotional programs in which consumers are typically offered a subscription to AOL’s subscription
services at no charge as a result of purchasing a product from the commerce partner, AOL records
Subscription revenue, based on net amounts received from the commerce partner, if any, on a straight-line
basis over the term of the service contract with the subscriber.

The accounting rules for advertising barter transactions require that historical cash advertising of a similar
nature exist in order to support the recognition of advertising barter revenue. The criteria used by the
accounting rules used to determine if a barter and cash transaction are considered “similar” include
circulation, exposure or saturation within an intended market, timing, prominence, demographics and
duration. In addition, when a cash transaction has been used to support an equivalent quantity and dollar
amount of barter revenue, the same cash transaction cannot serve as evidence of fair value for any other barter
transaction. While not required by the accounting rules, AOL management adopted a more conservative
policy by establishing an additional size criterion to the determination of “similar.” Pursuant to such criterion,
beginning in the second quarter of 2003, an individual cash advertising transaction of comparable average
value or higher value must exist in order for revenue to be recognized on an intercompany advertising barter
transaction. Said differently, no intercompany advertising barter revenue is recognized if a cash advertising
transaction of comparable average value or higher value has not been entered into in the past six months, even
if all of the other accounting criteria have been satisfied.

Cable

Cable revenues are principally derived from video programming, high-speed data and Digital Phone
subscriber fees and advertising. Subscriber fees are recorded as revenue in the period that the service is
provided, and Advertising revenues, including advertising purchased by programming vendors, are recognized
in the period that the advertisements are exhibited. Video programming costs are recognized as the services
are provided. Launch fees received by the Company from programming vendors are recognized as a reduction
of expense over the life of the related programming arrangement. Fees received from programming vendors
representing the reimbursement of marketing costs are recognized as a reduction in marketing expense in the
period that such reimbursements are received.

Publishing

Magazine Subscription and Advertising revenues are recognized at the magazine cover date. The
unearned portion of magazine subscriptions is deferred until the magazine cover date. Upon cover date, a
proportionate share of the gross subscription price is included in revenues, net of any commissions paid to
subscription agents. Also included in Subscription revenues are revenues generated from single-copy sales of
magazines through retail outlets such as newsstands, supermarkets, convenience stores and drugstores, which
may or may not result in future subscription sales.

Certain products, such as books and other merchandise, are sold to customers with the right to return
unsold items. Revenues from such sales are recognized when the products are shipped, based on gross sales
less a provision for future estimated returns based on historical experience.

Inventories of books and other merchandise are stated at the lower of cost or estimated realizable value.
Cost is determined using primarily the first-in, first-out method, or alternatively the average cost method.
Returned goods included in inventory are valued at estimated realizable value, but not in excess of cost. See
Note 9 for additional discussion of inventory.
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Networks

The Networks segment recognizes Subscription revenue as services are provided based on the per
subscriber negotiated contractual programming rate for each multi-system operator (“MSO”) and the
estimated number of subscribers at the respective MSO.

In the normal course of business, the Networks segment enters into long-term license agreements to
acquire programming rights. An asset and liability related to these rights is created (on a discounted basis)
when (i) the cost of each program is reasonably determined, (ii) the program material has been accepted in
accordance with the terms, and (iii) the program is available for its first showing or telecast. As discussed
below, there are slight variations in the accounting depending on whether the network is advertising supported
(e.g., TNT, TBS, The WB Television Network (“The WB Network™) or not advertising supported
(e.g., HBO).

For advertising-supported networks, the Company’s general policy is to amortize the programming costs
on a straight-line basis (or per play basis if greater) over the licensing period. There are, however, exceptions
to this general rule. For example, because of the significance of the rights fees paid for sports programming
licensing arrangements (i.e., NBA and MLB), programming costs are amortized using an income-forecast
model, in which total revenue generated under the sports programming is estimated and the costs associated
with this programming are amortized as revenue is earned, based on the relationship that the programming
costs bear to total estimated revenues, which approximates the pattern with which the network will utilize and
benefit from providing the sports programming. In addition, based on historical advertising sales, the Company
believes that, for certain types of programming, the initial airing has more value than subsequent airings. In
these circumstances, the Company will use an accelerated method of amortization. Additionally, if the
Company is licensing the right to air a movie multiple times over a certain period and the movie is being
shown to the public for the first time on a Company network (a “Premiere Movie”), a portion of the licensing
cost is amortized on the initial airing of the movie, with the remaining cost amortized on a straight-line basis
(or per play basis, if greater) over the remaining licensing period. The determination of the amount of
amortization to accelerate in the first showing versus subsequent showings has been determined based on a
study of historical advertising sales for similar programming.

For a premium cable network that is not advertising supported (e.g.,, HBO), programming costs are
generally amortized on a straight-line basis in the year that the related shows are exhibited. When the
Company has the right to exhibit feature theatrical programming in multiple windows over a number of years,
the Company uses historical audience performance as its basis for determining the amount of a film’s
programming amortization attributable to each window.

The Company records programming arrangements (e.g., film inventory, sports rights, etc.) at the lower of
unamortized cost or estimated net realizable value. For broadcast television networks (e.g., The WB
Network) whose sole revenue is advertising, the Company estimates the net realizable value of unamortized
cost based on the estimated advertising that can be sold during the season in which the package of
programming is aired. For cable networks (e.g., TBS, TNT, etc.), which earn both Advertising and
Subscription revenues, the Company evaluates the net realizable value of unamortized cost based on the
package of programming provided to the subscribers by the network. Specifically, in determining whether the
programming arrangements for a particular network are impaired, the Company determines the net realizable
value for all of the network’s programming arrangements based on a projection of the network’s estimated
combined subscription revenues and advertising revenues. Similarly, given the premise that customers
subscribe to a premium service because of the overall quality of its programming, the Company performs its
evaluation of the net realizable value of unamortized programming costs based on the package of program-
ming provided to the subscribers by the network. Specificaily, the Company determines the net realizable
value for all of its premium service programming arrangements based on projections of estimated subscription
revenues.

147



TIME WARNER INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Filmed Entertainment

Feature films are produced or acquired for initial exhibition in theaters, followed by distribution in the
home video, pay cable, basic cable, broadcast network and syndicated television markets. Generally,
distribution to the theatrical, home video and pay cable markets is completed principally within three years of
initial release. Thereafter, feature films are distributed to the basic cable, broadcast network and syndicated
television markets. Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are exhibited. Revenues from home video
sales are recognized on the date that video units are made widely available-for-sale or rental by retailers based
on gross sales less a provision for future estimated returns based on historical experience. Revenues from the
distribution of theatrical product to cable, broadcast network and syndicated television markets are recognized
when the films are available to telecast.

Television films and series are initially produced for broadcast networks, cable networks or first-run
television syndication and may be subsequently licensed to foreign or domestic cable and syndicated television
markets, as well as sold on home video. Revenues from the distribution of television product are recognized
when the films or series are available to telecast, except for barter agreements where the recognition of
revenue is deferred until the related advertisements are exhibited. Similar to theatrical home video sales,
revenue from home video sales of television films and series is recognized at the later of the delivery date or
the date that video units are made widely available-for-sale or rental by retailers.

License agreements for the telecast of theatrical and television product in the cable, broadcast network
and syndicated television markets are routinely entered into well in advance of the available date for telecast,
which is generally determined by the telecast privileges granted under previous license agreements. Accord-
ingly, there are significant contractual rights to receive cash and barter under these licensing agreements, For
cash contracts, the related revenues (which are discounted based on when cash will be collected) will not be
recognized until such product is available for telecast under the contractual terms of the related license
agreement. For barter contracts, the related revenues will not be recognized until the product is available for
telecast and the advertising spots received under such contracts are either used or sold to third parties. All of
these contractual rights for which revenue is not yet recognizable are referred to as “backlog.”

Inventories of theatrical and television product consist of videocassettes, DVDs and compact video discs
and are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Returned goods included in inventory are valued at
estimated realizable value, but not in excess of cost.

Film costs include the unamortized cost of completed theatrical films and television episodes, theatrical
films and television series in production and film rights acquired for the home video market. Film costs
principally consist of direct production costs, production overhead, development and pre-production costs, and
are stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated amortization, or fair value. The amount of capitalized film
costs recognized as cost of revenues for a given film as it is exhibited in various markets, throughout its life
cycle, is determined using the film forecast method. Under this method, the amount of capitalized costs
recognized as expense is based upon the proportion of the film’s revenues recognized for such period to the
film’s estimated remaining ultimate revenues. Similarly, the recognition of expenses for participations and
residuals is recognized upon the proportion of the film’s revenues recognized for such period to the film’s
estimated remaining ultimate revenues. These estimates are revised periodically and losses, if any, are
provided in full. See Note 9 for additional details of film costs.

A portion of the costs of acquiring Historic TW Inc. (“Historic TW™') in 2001 and of acquiring the
remaining Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P. (“TWE™) content assets in 2003 was allocated to
theatrical and television product, including purchased program rights and product that had been exhibited at
least once in all markets (*‘Library”). Library product is amortized in amortization expense over 20 years
using the film-forecast method. See Note 2 for additional details of Library.
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